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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for a minimum
period of seven days from the date of its publication and on the
Company's website at http.//www.hklifesciences.com. All respects
with the then existing shares.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREHEEEETRRON

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the
“Year").

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in (i) anti-aging
and stem cell technology businesses, (i) trading business; (iii)
money lending business; and (iv) securities investment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing operations

Anti-Aging and Stem Cell Technology Businesses

In recent years, the Group has been carrying out various
expansion plans for its investment in the anti-aging and stem cell
businesses. In 2012, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition of 51% of equity interests of 159 Regenerative
Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“159 Group”). 159 Group was granted a licence for the user right
of stem cell technology. In line with the business development,
the Group further acquired certain exclusive licences on certain
patents and an anti-aging and beauty center in Shenzhen in 2013.

Furthermore, the Group has also expanded its scope of the anti-
aging and stem cell technology businesses into research and
development area by entering into a technology development
agreement with BEEEMEHE (B8M) BBRZA 7 (Hope Bio-tech
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*) ("Hope Bio-Tech"”) (the “Technology
Development Agreement”) in March 2016, Hope Bio-Tech is
wholly-owned by Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, an executive Director, and
his spouse, for the clinical application, technical redevelopment
and commercialisation of two patents previously acquired in 2013.
Through entering into the Technology Development Agreement,
the Group aims to improve the patents and benefit from improving
its product mix as well as further expand its anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses. The Group intends to concentrate its
resources to develop the patent titled “method for constructing
pancreatic stem cell line from human insulin and differentiating to
insulin secretion cell” and believes that Hope Bio-tech possesses
the expertise and know-how to assist in the development and
improvement of the patent. Details of the Technology
Development Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 March 2016.

* for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEHREHEEEENRR DN

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has an anti-aging service center
and a stem cell processing center in Hong Kong and an anti-aging
and beauty center in Shenzhen. During the Year, the Group’s
revenue in anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses
recorded a decrease of approximately HK$4.0 million to
approximately HK$3.9 million (2016: HK$7.9 million). The segment
loss before impairment loss on other intangle assets and tax was
approximately HK$22.6 million (2016: HK$15.6 million). The 10ss
was incurred mainly from the staff and related cost, rental
expenses, research and development cost and depreciation. The
Group continued to face the keen competition and high operating
costs and the revenue was significantly affected by weak
demand for the existing stem cell technology service. The Group
has imposed tight costs control to cope with the changing
business environment.

The anti-aging and stem cell technology of the Group is still in
development stage. The Group will strive its best to develop this
business. However, the anti-aging application with the stem cell
technology is a fairly new service, the future of this business will
depend on the success in achieving the market acceptance and
customers’ confidence for our products and services. The Group
will continue to keep track of the business environment and
review the future allocation of resources as and when required.

Trading Business

During the Year, the Group engaged in the business of trading of
electronic component. The Group’s revenue in trading business
recorded an increase of approximately HK$26.8 million to
HK$121.9 million (2016: HK$95.1 million) mainly due to the
increase in the transaction volume. The segment loss before tax
was approximately HK$0.8 million (2016: HK$3.0 million). The loss
was incurred mainly from the staff and related cost, rental
expenses and depreciation. The Group will continue to attempt
to broaden the customer base and diversify its trading products
to increase the revenue stream and improve the financial
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREHEEEETRRON

Money Lending Business

The Group commenced its money lending business through Asia
Honest Finance Limited (“Asia Honest"), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which holds a money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong
Kong). As at 31 March 2017, the loan receivables and interests
receivables were approximately HK$181.2 million (2016: HK$181.3
million) and approximately HK$17.0 million (2016: HK$13.8 million)
respectively. During the Year, the Group's revenue in money
lending business recorded an increase of approximately HK$7.8
million to approximately HK$27.8 million (2016: HK$20.0 million)
mainly due to the increase of the average loan balance during
the Year. As part of the Group’s credit policy, management
assessed the recoverability of each loan receivable individually.
As at 31 March 2017, the impairment allowance made for
doubtful loan and interest receivables amounted to HK$22.1
million (2016: Nil). The Group has taken legal actions to recover
the amount but a full provision for impairment had been made
against the respective amount. Segment gain before impairment
loss on loan and interest receivables and tax was approximately
HK$26.5 million (2016: HK$18.8 million). The interest rate charged
by the Group to customers ranging from 10% to 24% (2016: 10%
to 24%) per annum. The Group continued to provide both
secured and unsecured loans to customers, including individuals
and corporations. The credit terms of outstanding loans granted
by the Group to customers ranged from several months to one
year. In view of significant demand in the market, the Group
intends to maintain the loan portfolio with a prudent manner in
order to generate a healthy cash flow and reasonable returns.

Securities Investment

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had held-for-trading
investments in the listed company in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$3.2 million (2016: HK$12.6 million). During the Year, the
realised loss on disposal of Hong Kong listed securities was
approximately HK$1.5 million (2016: gain of approximately HK$4.0
million) and the unrealised gain of Hong Kong listed securities
investments was approximately HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$0.5
million) representing the fair value change on held-for-trading
investments. No dividend from the securities investment was
received during the Year (2016: HK$0.3 million). The Board will
continue to monitor the market conditions and its performance.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TREEESEENWR DM

Discontinued Operation

Disposal of Hotel Operations

In June 2015, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with the purchaser to dispose of the Z/REAZE B X1z
EIEABR AR (Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited*) (“Tianxi Hotel") for a consideration of RMB5 million.
The completion of the disposal took place in June 2015 and the
financial results of Tianxi Hotel were therefore classified as the
discontinued operation. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the revenue from the hotel operations was approximately HK$1.4
million and recorded the loss of approximately HK$5.7 million
from the discontinued operation.

PROSPECTS

The Board continues their optimistic outlook of the anti-aging and
stem cell technology businesses and will adjust the Group's
development strategy according to the market changes. In this
regard, the Board will constantly keep reviewing the Group's
strategies and operations with a view to improving its business
performance. In view of the growth potential in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") market, we intend to further
develop our business in the PRC. We will also continue to
enhance the existing business and explore other business and
investment opportunities to diversify the revenue stream and
business portfolios to enhance the interest of the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year under review, the Group's total revenue
increased by 24.5% to approximately HK$153.6 million (2016:
HK$123.4 million) from continuing operations as compared to last
year. The increase was mainly derived from the trading and
money lending businesses, which is partially offset by the
decrease in the anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREHEEEETRRON

The Company has carried out an annual impairment test on its
other intangible assets arising from certain exclusive licences on
patents acquired in 2013. Taken into account the delay in
research and development plan on the patents, more research
effort and investment have to be made in order to produce
commercially viable products. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying
amounts of the other intangible assets were approximately
HK$12.0 million (2016: HK$46 million). The impairment loss of
HK$34.0 million (2016: HK$16 million) on other intangible assets
was recognised during the Year as the recoverable amounts of
other intangible assets were lower than their carrying amounts.
According to the relevant accounting standard, the Group has
prepared a cash flow forecast covering a 5-year period approved
by the management to assess the recoverable amount of other
intangible assets. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation, with reference to the
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer.

The Group's administrative and other operating expenses for the
Year was approximately HK$41.1 million (2016: HK$44.9 million)
from continuing operations. These expenses mainly consisted of
staff costs, impairment loss on trade receivables, legal and
professional fees, operating lease rentals and depreciation.

The loss for the Year was approximately HK$68.0 million (2016:
HK$47.4 million), representing an increase of about 43.3% as
compared to that of last year. The loss for the Year attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$64.7 million
(2016: HK$42.2 million) and the loss per share was 1.30 HK cents
(2016: 1.02 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 March 2017,

(@ the Group had net current assets approximately HK$343.2
million (2016: HK$258.3 million) and the cash and bank
balances was approximately HK$142.6 million (2016:
HK$40.3 million);

(b)  the Group had no outstanding interest-bearing borrowings
(2016: Nily,
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
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(c) the gearing ratio of the Group, being the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 10.3% (2016:
11.9%);

(d) the Group's total equity attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to HK$413.8 million (2016: HK$360.8
million). The capital of the Company mainly comprises
ordinary shares (the “Shares”) and capital reserves.

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL

MANDATE

References were made to the Company’s announcements dated
21 December 2016, 23 December 2016 and 6 January 2017 (the
“Announcements”) in relation to the Company and the placing
agent entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to place
of 948,064,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a price of
HK$0.13 (the “Placing Price”) per Placing Share (the “Placing”).
All conditions set out in the Placing Agreement had been fulfilled
and that the Placing of 948,064,000 Placing Shares was
completed on 6 January 2017. Pursuant to the Placing
Agreement, 474,032,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued
to Pacific Fortune Global Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is engaged in
investment activities; and 474,032,000 Placing Shares were
allotted and issued to Global High Growth Industries Fund Series
SPC ("GH SPC"), which is a Cayman Islands exempted
segregated portfolio company incorporated with limited liability
on 13 February 2014 to operate as a private investment funds
and GH SPC subscribed for the account of Shengyuan China
Dragon Cutting Edge Technology Investment Fund SP. The
aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares under the Placing
was HK$37,922,560. The Placing Price of HK$0.13 represented a
discount of approximately 2.99% to the closing price of HK$0.134
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Placing Agreement. The net proceeds raised per Share from the
Placing were approximately HK$0.1267 per Placing Share and the
net proceeds from the Placing amounted to approximately
HK$120.1 million. Up to the date of this report, approximately
HK$14 million has been deployed as general working capital and
development of existing business. Details of the Placing were
disclosed in the Announcements.
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MATERIAL EVENTS BEAREE
(a) Litigation and assignment agreement (a) FANEZER R

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 27 May 2013 in relation to the Group, the vendor and
the guarantors entered into the sale and purchase agreement
for the sale and purchase (the “Acquisition Agreement”) of
the property located at Longgang District, Shenzhen (the
“Property”). Under the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor
agreed to handover the Property to the purchaser for use
before 31 January 2014. The Group had paid the deposit to the
vendor in accordance with the Acquisition Agreement but the
vendor failed to handover the Property. The Group had lodged
a civil litigation against the vendor and the guarantors on 7
April 2016 (the “Litigation”) and applied for an order from the
People’s Court of Longgang District, Shenzhen Municipality of
the PRC (the “People’s Court of Longgang") for, among
other things, termination of the Acquisition Agreement and
the supplemental agreement to the Acquisition Agreement,
return of the refundable deposit in the sum of RMB23,520,000
and payment of damages in the sum of RMB8,490,720 (being
the damages for the period from 1 February 2014 to 15 March
2016). The Group had instructed its PRC lawyers to handle the
Litigation and deal with all legal matters in relation thereto.

On 22 June 2016, the Group entered into a creditor’s rights
assignment agreement (the “Assignment Agreement”) with
FINTHMAAER L AR AR (Shenzhen Tennessee
Technology Co., Ltd*, as the assignee) (the “Assignee”) for
the transfer of the creditor’s rights, the rights against the
Guarantors and all the other rights and interests vested in the
Purchaser under the Acquisition Agreement and the
supplementary agreement to the Assignee (the “Sale
Rights") for a consideration of RMB11 million. The assignment
of the Sale Rights is a good opportunity for the Purchaser to
reduce potential loss caused by the Litigation and transfer the
relevant costs and risk out of the Purchaser, the Group. The
Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
were of the view that the assignment under the Assignment
Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the terms
of the Assignment Agreement are fair and reasonable and on
normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole. Details of the Litigation and
Assignment Agreement were disclosed in the Company'’s
announcements dated 4 May 2016 and 22 June 2016
respectively.
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(b) Discloseable transaction in relation to the

(c)

further extension of loan agreement |

On 29 September 2016, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam Wai Keung
(“Mr. Lam”) and Honorbase International Limited
(“Honorbase”) entered into the further extension loan
agreement | (the “Further Extension Loan Agreement I").
References were made to the Company’s announcement
dated 27 March 2015, 29 September 2015 and 22 March
2016 regarding the Loan Agreement, Extension Loan
Agreement and Further Extension Loan Agreement
between Asia Honest, and Mr. Lam and Honorbase.
Pursuant to the Further Extension Loan Agreement, Asia
Honest agreed to extend the maturity date of the loan to 20
September 2016. As the term of Extension Loan Agreement
had expired, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam and Honorbase entered
into the Further Extension Loan Agreement | to extend the
maturity date of the Loan from 20 September 2016 to 20
March 2017. Pursuant to the Further Extension Loan
Agreement |, the principal of the loan of HK$27,389,676 was
secured by the legal charge in respect of land located in
Hong Kong. Details of the Further Extension Loan
Agreement | were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 29 September 2016.

Discloseable transaction in relation to the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of
Honorbase

On 31 May 2017, the Metropolitan Global Trading Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with, among other
parties, Mr. Lam (the "Vendor") and Honorbase (the “Target
Company”) pursuant to which the Vendor had agreed to
sell and the Purchaser had agreed to purchase the Sale
Shares representing the entire issued share capital of the
Target Company at the consideration of HK$43,900,000 (the
"Agreement”) on and subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein. The Target Company is the legal and
beneficial owner of the Property which is situated at Lantau
Island, Hong Kong and is mainly designated for the
development of private residential properties for sale. In view
of the potential growth of the property market in Hong Kong,
the Group believes that this is a good opportunity to acquire
a small property for possible development or resale so as to
enable a more diversified income for the Group and return
for Shareholders. All the conditions precedent to the
Agreement had been fulfilled and completion took place on
7 June 2017. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement, dated 31 May 2017 and 7 June
2017.

(b)

(c)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments as at 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2016: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plan for material investment or capital assets as at 31
March 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material material
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business operations and financial conditions may be
affected by various types of risks and uncertainties, including the
operational risks, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
regulatory risks. The Group has established a set of risk
management policies and measures to identify, evaluate and
manage risks arising from its operations.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group's internal
processes, including but not limited to potential misconduct of
employees and fraud, which may bring significant adverse impact
on the Group's business operations and reputation. Operational
risks may also result from emergencies and unexpected events
such as natural hazards.
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Price risk refers to the Group’s investment in the held-for-trading
investments. As the Group's investments are mainly
concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong Kong, the
financial position and the returns of the investments will be
affected by the conditions of the stock market in Hong Kong.
Negative developments in, or the general weakness of, the Hong
Kong economy, may have a direct adverse effect on the Group's
investment performance.

Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to
meet their contractual obligations. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk for its money lending businesses arises
primarily from the individual borrowers. Since most of the
Group's loan receivables are unsecured, this leads to Group
subject to greater risk of irrecoverability. If, in a subsequent
period, conditions such as economic downturn, and other factors
affects the repayment status of the borrowers and the estimation
of future cash flows of the loans, a loss may arise.

Liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in maintaining sufficient
fund to meet the liquidity requirements. In the management of
the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management regularly
reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has adequate
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
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Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and any future
changes in the relevant laws and regulations. Non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the
revocation or suspension of the money lenders licence and/or
the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence. The
Company has adopted a series of internal control policies and
procedures which governs the Company’s compliance matters in
relation to the Money Lenders Ordinance, the GEM Listing Rules
as well as other relevant regulations.

Further discussion on the Group’s risks are set out in the note 30
to the consolidated financial statements and the risk
management and internal control of the Company is set out in
the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from page
31 to page 33 of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi and considers that the impact of foreign
exchange exposure of the Group is minimal. During the Year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
PUrpoSES.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed a total of 43 (2016: 38)
full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Year
under review, the total remuneration to employees, including
Directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits amounted to
approximately HK$11.1 million (2016: HK$14.7 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
qualification, experience and the prevailing industry practice.
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APPRECIATIONS

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to all our Shareholders, customers, business partners
who have been offering their support, confidence and
encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion,
diligence and effort of the management and the members of staff
who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for
improvements of the Group. With all these supports remain, we
shall continue to explore means to improve the Group’s
performance and provide investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Profile of Directors
BE/E

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr. Lin”), aged 67, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 23
September 2013. Mr. Lin is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30 years’ experience in
healthcare management. Mr. Lin is currently the shareholder and
director of Healthcare Solution Investments Limited, Wei Xin
Hospital Investments Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd* and Hope
Bio-Tech.

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance officer, the
authorized representative and the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Central State University of the United
States of America, a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and a
Bachelor Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong University.
Mr. Lu attended the progrom of a Master of Science Degree from
the International Purchasing & Supply Chain Management
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management. Mr. Lu has many years'
experience in corporate management and investment. Mr. Lu is
currently an executive director of Extrawell Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 858). He was an executive director
of Global Energy Resources International Group Limited (Stock
code: 8192) from 28 November 2014 to 2 September 2016 and a
non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Ltd. (formerly known
as China New Energy Power Group Limited stock code: 1041)
from 29 October 2014 to 9 July 2015.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 50, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive Director on 30 November 2009.
Mr. Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process in
Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 20 years’ experience in financial
management, accounting and auditing fields. Mr. Chui is currently
a non-executive director of each of Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 404), Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1246) and DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code:
559). He was an executive director of China Energy Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from 5 October 2005 to 30
June 2016 and an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March
2010 to 16 March 2016.
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Mr. Jiang Hongging (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 49, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. He has resigned as a vice chairman of the Board
but remains as an executive Director on 22 August 2014. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d' Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
People’s Republic of China. In addition, Mr. Jiang was also the
member of City Ecological Planning and Construction Academic
Committee of the Urban Planning Society of China and also was
a consultant of Urban Planning Construction and Protection of
Ancient City of Lijiang, Yunnan Province. He has extensive
experience in planning design, architectural design, landscape
architecture design, planning management and project planning.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited (stock code: 726).

Ms. Li Mei (“Ms. Li"), aged 37, was appointed as the executive
Director on 14 December 2015. Ms. Li holds a degree of Master
of Business Administration in Financial Management from York
University, United States of America. Ms. Li has extensive
experience in financial services business. She is a licensed
person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
to carry on type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity. Ms. Li
is an independent non-executive of China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited (formerly known Sky Forever Supply Chain Management
Group Limited, stock code: 8047). She was an executive Director
of the Company from 21 September 2012 to 1 August 2013.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam”), aged 69, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 December
2012. Ms. Lam is currently the sub-director and the shareholder
of GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR TRANSPORT COMPANY
LIMITED. Ms. Lam has over 30 years' business experience in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau region.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung"), aged 65, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013. Mr.
Hung is also the chairman of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a graduate
diploma in Accounting from University of Strathclyde, Glasgow.
Mr. Hung has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
finance and is a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed
company. He is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited
(stock code: 292) and Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock code:
214). He was an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58) from 28 February
2013 to 20 May 2015.

Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan"), aged 69, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in
Shenzhen (RITS), China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is
currently the director and consultant of Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui
Li Group Limited*. He is also the Standing Committee Member of
Guangdong Huizhow of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-
General of Hong Kong Federation of Huichow Associations
Limited and the Deputy Secretary-General of Hong Kong
Federation of Guangdong Hakka Associations.
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Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“Mr. Gui"), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 21
September 2012. Mr. Gui is also the member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of
Business Administration from California Southern University
(formerly known as Southern California University for Professional
Studies) and as a post-doctoral research fellow at California State
University Monterey Bay. Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of the
board of GN International Group and the chairman of World City
Cooperation Organization Committee of China. He possesses the
professional qualifications such as China Certified Real Estate
Appraiser, Certified Public Valuer and Registered Land Valuer. Mr.
Gui has over 20 years corporate experience and over 5 years
working experience in the Government of the People’s Republic
of China.
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Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report for the Year.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that good
quality corporate governance would assist the management to
monitor the Company’s business activities effectively and thus
interests of the Shareholders will be well protected.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.
Throughout the Year, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with the principle in the code provision of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
save for the following deviations as set out in the relevant section
below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted a Code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 t0 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings throughout the
Year.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
In practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Group, include approving and monitoring
of all policy matters, setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The day-
to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Group. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the coordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Group in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
of the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.

The Directors have full and timely access to information and
accounts of the Group and are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
company’'s expenses.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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SREARE

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
Directors and their respective roles in the Board are set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Ms. Li Mei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
posted on respective websites of the GEM and the Company.

The profiles of each Director are set out in the “Profile of
Directors” section on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company currently has three independent non-executive
Directors (the “INEDS") which representing equal to one-third of
the Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDS can assist the management to
formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company
maintains appropriate system to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence to the
Company in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ").

THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended the
meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). The Board is scheduled to meet four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with notice
given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days in advance.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail
for any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes of
the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. INEDs who have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

During the Year, 16 Board meetings were held, at which the
Directors discussed and approved, among other matters (i) the
Group's consolidated annual results for the year ended 31 March
2016, the first quarterly results for the three months ended 30
June 2016, interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2016 and third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
December 2016, (ii) the discloseable transactions and inside
information in relation to the proposed acquisition, (iii)
refreshment of general mandate and placing of new Shares and
placing of new Shares under general mandate, and (iv) the overall
strategic direction and objectives of the business and other
significant matter of the Group.

Individual attendance of each Director at the Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meetings are set out in the
table on page 29 of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Pursuant to the Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance
of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Lu
Zhigiang respectively.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The CEO is responsible for the overall management and business
operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The newly appointed Director is provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations.
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During the Year, the Company had arranged at the cost of the
Company a professional seminar conducted by a professional
firm on topics relating to the new amendments to the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. All Directors including newly appointed
Directors would receive such training reading materials.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 on directors’ training. During the Year, all
Directors namely Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, Mr. Lu Zhigiang, Mr. Chui
Kwong Kau, Mr. Jiang Hongging, Ms. Li Mei, Ms. Lam Kuo, Mr.
Hung Yat Ming, Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang had
participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation to the
business on directors’ duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The written terms
of reference for Board committees are posted on the respective
websites of the GEM and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules and Code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor
and any questions of its resignation and dismissal, review the
Group’s annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, review the Company's financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems, discuss the
internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, review the Group's financial and accounting
policies and practices and to provide advices and comments
thereon to the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings, at which
the Audit Committee had reviewed and discussed, among other
matters (i) the Group’s consolidated annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the first quarterly results for the three
months ended 30 June 2016, interim results for the six months
ended 30 September 2016 and third quarterly results for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016; (i) the term of engagement of
external auditor and the audit planning and the engagement of
for the year ended 31 March 2017; and (iii) the appointment of
service provider relating to the review and assessment of risk
management and internal control system of the Group for year
ended 31 March 2017.

Individual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Company’s
audited consolidated financial results for the Year, including the
accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group, the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report, the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems and the Group's
internal audit function performed by the external internal control
advisers and recommended to the Board for consideration the
same and the re-appointment of Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited
(“Pan-China”) as the Company’s external independent auditor at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM").
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code provision A.5.2 of the CG
Code. As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming, Mr. Chan Yun
Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the INEDs and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors as well as review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance guidelines of the Company and to
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the Board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code. The
Company recognises that the Board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’'s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional experience.
All Directors’ appointments are based on merits and considered
against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, at
which the Nomination Committee had (i) reviewed and discussed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, (ii) reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy, and (i) recommended to the Board for the
consideration of the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors at
the forthcoming AGM.
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The Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed each of
the INEDs’ annual written confirmation of independence for the
Year and confirmed that all of them, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gu Qiangfang remain independent.

Individual attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual
report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chui
Kwong Kau, and three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming , Mr.
Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, at
which the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved
the the remuneration packages for individual executive Directors
and senior management.

Individual attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BEHEeSNG

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings T HHIESEERAEEHFESeeELER
and its respective committees meetings, and general meeting BrZESe e REEAS Y REEE
during the Year are set out in the following table:

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HESHERE HEERERZRE

Annual
General
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Meeting/
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
B= EZeeE ENZESER REZE88E FMzEEeE RREFAE
/BRAR

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun ek s 16/16 N/A A N/ATNEF N/ATEF 1/2
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EELE 16/16 N/ATER N/ARE A N/ARE A 2/2
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau BRI E 16/16 N/ATiEF N/A i A 171 2/2
Mr. Jiang Hongaing FRERE 14/16 N/ATEF N/AE A N/ATEF 0/2
Ms. Li Mei BT 15/16 N/ARiEF N/A i A N/ATiE A 172

Non-executive Director ~ FH(TEE

Ms. Lam Kuo mRzZE 14/16 N/A7NE £ N/ATNEF N/ATNEF 0/2
Independent Non- BYFHTES

executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming AEREE 15/16 5/5 Al 171 2/2
Mr. Chan Yun Hing BREEEE 1216 5/5 1/1 11 0/2
Mr. Gui Qiangfang EL: i 1216 5/5 m”n 11 0/2

Pursuant to Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman  BIENZEEATRIFEEAN2ETENEX - FFEEH
should attend the annual general meeting. However, Ms. Lam EREAFAE - A MELTREREDTHE
Kuo was unable to attend the annual general meeting heldon 5 M EEMELIHER_ZE—"F/N\ARHETZ
August 2016 due to her other prior engagement. Ms. Lam invited REFEFAE - MAZ T RFRITE S E N L L
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, an executive Director to chair and answer — F AR AR FBEE A e K EIZIERM ° A TN
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The EZHAMCOEFEAATKRREBEERE - UEEEHE
external auditor of the Company attended the annual general BAETT1E - GRZEMBFELERND » €57
meeting of the Company to answer questions about the conduct %5 LA R AZ EEm I8 7 14 2 18R o

of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,

the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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Pursuant to Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings. However,
certain non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company due to their other prior
engagements. Details of attendance of the general meeting are
set out in the above table.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the Company's compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is committed to provide a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required by the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules.

The management also provides the Board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group'’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the Board as a whole and each Directors to discharge
their duties under Rule 5.01 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The responsibility of the auditor is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

R EEETRAIEALTIRTRIET - 2BEIEH
TEFERLERRAE - A - ETHATES

AEERBEMEBMEEHEARRBRFESF
RE - AEBRRAGH R FBHNLER -

AR
EXCRATETREERBE  HPEEHIER
R ARBEECXEARRLER BERETER
REEREZERL BAREREERGRER
B2 RFEEEER  UEBAARFRE
NACLEREATIRRFRIEHIKE -

CEERRSCEEFTSERN  UBTHEXE

AREE

BEKEFZ
EEQRNRFERTHHREARLAIFER ETR
AIFTHE < LM B 5 3 BR B RHR (57 BT 2
HIEROFE  EFNTNFEEAREERE
F 75 s o5 A A Ko 2 BIGRY BR A1 AR B R R 2 3
BRERMABNATFZHEEMB]ME
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REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITOR

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of Pan-
China as the independent auditor of the Company and proposed
to re-appoint Pan-China as the independent auditor at the
forthcoming AGM.

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the
Company are as follows:

R BRET BN <&
EREERERIRRIEAARDRBILRYE 2
KB DRERAQTEEREBE ARG LA
K B IABED -

RAFER » AR B REBERH 2 EZ IR
RIRBRXES N2 BERMT

Type of services Amounts
RIEESE ]
HK$
BT
Audit service BEZRE
Audit fee for the financial statements of the Group for A&EBHEZ -ZT—+F=HA=+—H
the year ended 31 March 2017 IFFEHBRRCEZER 880,000
Non-audit service BRI
Fee for financial due diligence in relation to the FHREFENEFE I NBEREEE
proposed acquisition 270,000
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL kR ERERAPERE
CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the design, implementation, ZEZ®B&EXZ: - #T- Bl NEE 2N
monitoring and review of the Group's system of internal control &P &1 Hll/E Lxﬁﬁf%ﬁﬁxﬁ&}?z cEEEGHESR

to ensure their effectiveness and adequacy. The Board shall at
least annually review its risk management and internal control
system. The Group has adopted a series of internal control
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving the business objectives of the Group.
However, the system of internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

LEFRIERBRERELABEZEHE - KN&EH
E%ZW*%E‘JW*B?% HENER - §HEAER
EERAEEZEBKBER - A - AEBEE %Uﬁ
aEEﬁﬁﬁiEﬁBﬂﬁ*ﬁzLﬁ%ﬁ‘xEﬁZﬂ
Eﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ‘ihh.:.Iiﬁﬁ#i@;ﬂ%

Koo

=
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Objective of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group include:

o to ensure the Company’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
requirements,

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management
and internal control systems,

o to implement top-down and bottom-up approaches risk
management system that covers every aspect of the
business; and

o to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.

Principles of Internal Control

The development internal control systems involved five elements,
namely internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring of controls. The
aim of internal control is to reasonably guarantee the compliance
of its operation and management with regulations and laws,
assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial report
and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realization of
development strategy of the Group.

Risk Management Approach

The risk management process of the Group involves risk
identification, analysis, evaluation, communication, reporting and
monitoring. The methodology adopted in risk identification and
assessment process involves top-down and bottom-up
approaches. At the Board level, a top-down approach is adopted
to focus on determining the nature and extent of major strategic
risks that it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
The key risks related to the Group’s business and to the
industries in which the Group operates were set out in the
section headed “Principal risks and uncertainties” of Chairman'’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis.

Rk EERARREEEZ B
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At functional level, a bottom-up approach with involvement of all
significant departments of the Group is adopted to identify
operational risks in daily operations. The process includes the
maintenance of internal control manual and compliance manual
setting out the particulars of material risks together with the
control measures as reported by significant departments of the
Group. It is to ensure that the significant risks to be considered
by the Board in determining the risk appetite and the adequacy
of resource, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group
and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines. All employees are committed to continually enhancing
the risk management framework, linking to our corporate
strategies as well as integrating it into day-to-day operation of
the business.

During the Year, the Board has, through the Audit Committee
and with the assistance of management and external internal
control advisers, conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of financial, operational and compliance controls
and reported its findings and made recommendations to the
Board.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and an
independent consultancy firm was engaged as the Group’s
external internal control advisers, to perform the review on the
internal control system of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions for the Year.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function through discussion with the Audit
committee on major findings and control issue and considered
them effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

EINEEER  ARBCRMSRAKRERBEER
ﬁBFEJZEETHﬁJ:Eﬁ CABRBEEERZEE

cBBEFEENEAREEFMEERTF
FH% ' ?.?EP%}ZEIJEKJ—L 2 ARBRERAKEE
ZERFITER EREE EMERESTSEE
TE R ATERE 1) DA AN R R & A K B 7% R R
ZER BITERNES BB REERST
FREEBIEXRER

AEEERHERT AR T RERA
REFEY 2 EARR - HARF O ETHER
TR AEE RO WL TR ERREE KA
B HE - 2RES DN BENRARERE
R RACEEELRARBEBHEE -

}?

RAFERN EFQCBERERLZBQUAEER
B RINERIEIEBM 2 BN T - e AR R

H}‘

B ZBRAEREENE KN YREEDE
WERAEERRIRHES -
ARNBPRAZBEZRAE - T —RELFHRS

REERAFERNERE R ASEINS AR IE
B DRI ARERNESEENE SB35
BB R B METR A KBk B IR RAE

EEXeCARRERZESHNIZREAEREE
ZEEETIR  Wen AKERREERAR
EIEHIE AR AR E B 2 R - YR BUE

FHHUEERNRTED BEEFESHOEELAERD
IR EREBECER BIEREKERETE
EEERTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors in
accordance with Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Other employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company are also subject to dealing
restrictions. The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use
of confidential or insider information. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside
information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the
Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be announced
on the respective websites of GEM and the Company in due
course.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Tze Chung was appointed as the Company Secretary
with effect from 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the CEO on
governance matters. He has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training for the Year.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convent such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

BERBHMATHER
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Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the respective websites of GEM and the
Company after each general meeting.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency through the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend general
meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board
directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant committees
will be also available to answer the questions in the general
meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company.
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The Directors herein present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses; (i) trading business; (i) money lending business; and
(iv) securities investment. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF KEY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Details of the business review and analysis of key financial
performance indicators of the Group for the Year are set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated
financial statement on pages 54 to 58 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
page 184 of this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves and distributable reserves
of the Company and the Group during the Year are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements and
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively of this
annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 20 to
35 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable
to its operational activities in order to minimise these impacts if
possible. In view of the above and as at the date of this annual
report, the Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental protection awareness to all employees of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers and suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts
with the customers and has regular review of requirements of
customers and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of
the performance of suppliers on regular basis.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the new enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of
the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors and other officers, for the
time being acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group to protect the Directors and officers of the Group against
any potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongqing

Ms. Li Mei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang
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In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Chan Yun
Hing, Mr. Chui Kwong Kau and Mr. Lu Zhigiang, being one-third of
the Directors will retire as Directors by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence in accordance
with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As as the date of this
report, the Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Profile details of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 19 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS
Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in the Note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages o the
Directors and senior management with reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Director and performance of the Group. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the interests of Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, an executive
Director, a vice-chairman and a shareholder of the Company, in
the Technology Development Agreement, as mentioned in the
section headed “Related Party and Connected Transactions” in
this report, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company and any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

RIBERRAAFE 87 - BRBEEE - EXIRE
EREEREE =02 —28%F  BRER
f YAFAERKEERRRABFAS B2
BIE o

BAFHITESZBILSH

ARPICEESBUIFNTESRERIER LD
MAIESOOEMEB L M E L 2 EMFEER
Ko RAREBH  ARARMDRBIIFNITES
RBIAL -

BB
EHEE Y BEHEHN AT RE 16 E19E -

EEZREEN
FRNBEBE AR L EREA 2 EFHMEALL
AT LB R T AR LTI 48 T R 1 O
BN ZRIEA B -

ESHMH
BFRAEEHFM o FBIEANARE 2R E B RE
BFE15 ©

EEMEBE

FHEEGDEKY  WE2EAELBR DAY
Nz#He EFMNH2HREBENURKREERR
Himer NETEENSRERBAB ZME LF
BFE - ARRIEIRMBERAETEINRESRA
BigR BIRHLIEE) - ARAISEN [BAERTE)

—&f

EENERGHzER

SRR E [BREMA L REER S | —HpT A
NEMITES « B FERBCRAM G 8 ER B
MEARZERIN  BEEENARA REEM
MEBARRAFREAZMEAEEZEEN B
BERZAKNTEERIEEREETEAES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director
EEME

Capacity
51

Beneficial owner
BEmlEAA

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun
IN=E e

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executives had any other interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERTETBRAERES 2R

RIZ—+F=A=1+—8 EERARATE
TBRAB((EEZFTHRABRD RARFSHELMAE
BOEE (E& R BB EDIES71 EES LB %D
(IRERMEMRG ) EXVELD) 2Bty - HHRE R
LREEFETHRAREES RMERIIEXVEET
K8 EAMGARNR NIRRTz KRR (B
ERIBE R E RO AR IRR FRE G
RBEBZEDIORE)  IRBFSLAERGIFE
352 R7B B RO IR R& Gk S P sl B RC M1l A 2 #E 2l KO
B HRBAIEIR ETRAIFS A6 E5.671RER
ERETEFRPDZREEMEARA LB
ZRERMABIAT

P
_H.
>
bu]|
il

BR(RG)2FR

Number of Percentage of

Shares Held Shares in issue

P HE &7

I & H BRHABEDE

(Approximate)

(BE49)

878,862,333 15.45%
BrEXFEZEEIN  RZE—tF=A=+—81"

BMEZEERE BITHA BRAR R s H T #H 5
FE(EERBLHRBEGOEXVE) 2 FM[E&
% HERMDKEEEPEFREES MBI
BIEXVEFE7 R8N EAEMEARRNA KRB T2
R EmERSAR (RIEREES KAEKLE
BB EWEERAEE ZERIAE) + 5
RIEE 5 R EIE &0 55 352 16 B B L R s I SLFT
mEEMARZEREmERSAR - SIBEAIZE
R EMRANFE546E567EBAESFETEER
B2 IREBNG AR T KB Z AR E S
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of share in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 August 2010 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the shares to be issued under the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 17 November 2010,
the Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme to replace
the expired share option scheme adopted on 1 February 2002.
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme were set out in
the appendix to the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2010.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 August
2015 (the “2015 AGM"), the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme mandate
limit in accordance with the Share Option Scheme and the GEM
Listing Rules, thereby allowing the Company to grant further
options for subscription of a total of 395,033,280 Shares,
representing 10% Shares in issue as at the date of the 2015 AGM.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to provide incentive to participants with the opportunity
of participating in the growth of the Company by acquiring shares
in the Company and may, in turn, assist in the attraction and
retention of talents who have made contributions to the success
of the Company.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme. As at 31 March 2017, there were a total of 395,033,280
Shares, representing 6.94% of the issued Shares, available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme. No share options were
granted, lapsed or exercised during the Year and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2017 and 2016..

ESWBERONEREE ZEFN

PREEACERT SN RAFEAEMER » AA7
K E AT E R R ES BT SR B - BUE
B HEREARASERMEMEABREZ KD
Sk AR HERE AR ©

BRETE

@%Fﬁ’\:%—%i)\ﬂEEIéﬁ%”_ZK/‘ﬂ%%%
FIAEBRBZERRBRIBRIAN _—E—FF
T AT tRAtERERESS ((RBRETS ) A
THRFETZRO LT REER - AREEHA
BREAEUBRAR -2 -F - A —HRAM
BEmZ R &) - BTS2 ERIGFHH

RAARBMA-2—2FLA-THZBEN
R
R-ZT—RHFN\ALBERG2AAARBEFA

S([ZZ2-AFRRBFRE])  FRFAKRRE
HEEAR BB BT 8] MBI IR AR R E # A AX
REFTEIRERE  BUARAE-TREER
T LA R & $£395,033,280 1kl tn - HHE R =T
—hFERRBFAGHEHEEHITRNZ10% °

BhETIEEBRARAMSEERIKE B
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BRI RBEEARAKMIELERIZAT -
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MR -_EBE—+E=A=1+—B A2FHAH
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS BREH R

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, N0 [ Pl BB AR ET 214N - ARFEE R AR E
equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the &k - KD &) 8 ST 7 () B8 2 54913 3 ()
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into & st Al gt B A QR ZTRMG » K () FEEAD
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing &8ss F A g & sk e EH AR D 7 (TR MG 2
Shares were entered into by the Company during the Year or  # o

subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors andthe WR-Z—+F=A=+—H BEELITEITH
Chief Executives, and based on the public records filed onthe A EFr4&l - WiRIE F{EB S AEUL Y AFSEEE
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company, AKAFTGFEEZEHLE U TATH ZE(EELTE
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations 1T A BN RAR T IR D S BEIR DR IEA R
(other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in the shares 1% & 5 & B3 & 16 /5] 55 XV 2 55 2 K% 345> 2RI ZE [A)
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be AAFHEBEZ#HEZ R AE @+ KR AKRDFTIRIEE
disclosed to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 %4 & BRE (& | E 336 & BB E2M R 2
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register  R%&un T -

required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO, were as follows:

Percentage of Shares

Name of Shareholders Capacity Number of Shares Held in issue (Approximate)
BRER BB 514 FrsiRa 8B HERTRABEIL
(#4)
Primeshare Globe (Hong Kong)  Beneficial owner 721,452,000 12.68%
Inv.Co., Limited
Primeshare Globe (Hong Kong) &Ez#EH A
Inv.Co., Limited
Lau Ngai Cheung (Note) Beneficial owner and 752,850,000 13.23%
interest of controlled
corporation
Lau Ngai Cheung (Ff5E) Eala AR
EEE S
Pacific Fortune Global Limited  Beneficial owner 474,032,000 8.33%
(Note)
Pacific Fortune Global Limited ~ &z#A A
(M%)
Global High Growth Industries  Trustee 474,032,000 8.33%
Fund Series SPC
EREERITERIES ZFEA
S RVEL =V == /N
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Note:

Lau Ngai Cheung has a direct 100% interest in Pacific Fortune Global Limited. Under
the SFO, Lau Ngai Cheung is deemed to be interested in 474,032,000 Shares
registered in the name of Pacific Fortune Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons or corporations (other than the
Directors and the Chief Executives) who had interest in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year under review, the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 70.4% of the Group's total purchases. Aggregate
sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were
approximately 85.6% of the Group’s sales while the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 56.0% of the
Group's sales.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued capital of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major
suppliers and customers for the Year.

BifaE

Lau Ngai Cheung Pacific Fortune Global Limited B2 & 2 20425 ©
RIEEH & H S 159 Lau Ngai Cheung 4 18 & 7 & &2 1A Pacific
Fortune Global Limited & T~ 2 474,032,000 A% A% 7 7 # 5 # 2= ©

fR EXFIIEESN R=F—tF=A=1—8"
BEEMAABEAMEMALTIER (EEREETT
B BERSN) IR AR kAR B R {0 R A R &
&7 R B GRGIEXVERSE 2 K 370 B IR XA R A
RARBEZ R AL ARRARBEESRPE
P16 336 IRFIBFEE RO A 2 st

BE - HEIEE KRG

RAFE  ARFHEEFMEARHEEE -
HESEE AR RHERIARD

ITREFRHER
REVBEREN - ARBTG5 A B8
EHHI100% « AR BB A R (R BB
WHENI704% - AEBAAEF 2 BHEAERE
B4 85.6%  TIARERAT S (G AEEH
ERAAI56.0% °

RABMEMBEEIN RAFE 8BF  KF
ZEBBBAREMBRR (BESHMAHEE AR
BEBITRASRIALE) WERAEE T ZHER
REFPHHEEEMERER -
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements of this report and the
connected transaction is as below:

On 18 March 2016, the Group entered into the Technology
Development Agreement with Hope Bio-Tech. As at the date of
the Technology Development Agreement, Mr. David Lin Kao Kun
was an executive Director, a vice-chairman and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and his spouse (being Mr. Lin's
associate under the GEM Listing Rules) were indirectly interested
in the entire equity interests in Hope Bio-Tech. Accordingly, Hope
Bio-Tech was an associate of Mr. Lin under the GEM Listing Rules
and hence was a connected person of the Company. The total
consideration under the Technology Development Agreement
was HK$9.5 million of which HK$3 million had been paid during
the year ended 31 March 2016 and the balances of HK$6.5 million
had been paid or payable during the Year. Details of the
Technology Development Agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors, controlling
Shareholders nor any of their close respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EREBALIREAERS

BB AL 5 HERRARSE 2 54 KR
KR REEZ ST -

RZZE-RF=ZA+TN\B  AEEEEZELYH
RAIEMAEAR - REMFEZEERAH - #
SEHEL(ANTES  ARFEITFEREZRR)
KEBCE (BNRIER LR R REMEE 2B R
N EEREEEEYMRIZ 280 - Bt - E
RAEMFIR DB R R LT AR B P FLE AR A 2 B
BN BBARRZEEAL RIMHEARZ
# (B A%/ 9,500,000 % 7T+ H A 3,000,000 TE
REBE-Z-—RF=ZA=1T—HLEFEXN
#R3% 6,500,000/ B TLRIE R AFEL BN - B
BARMAEAR 2HBHENARAANA T
—ANFZATNBZAM -

BT

R-ZE—tF=R=+—H 8&EF EREX
EEEEAEEHEA(ERRAIEKR EHRA
BENEALATREEAEEEBEBREALFZ
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BIEARAFEAMEHRIBEERD PRI
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 May 2017, the Purchaser entered into the Agreement with,
among other parties, the Vendor and Target Company pursuant
to which the Vendor had agreed to sell and the Purchaser had
agreed to purchase the Sale Shares representing the entire
issued share capital of the Target Company at the consideration
of HK$43,900,000 on and subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein. Details of the acquisition were set out in the
"Discloseable transaction in relation to the acquisition of entire
issued share capital of Honorbase” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by the auditor of the Company, Pan-China, who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at
the AGM. A resolution for the reappointment of Pan-China as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017

BEHREE

R-FE—tFRAA=1+—8 BEHEETBE)
B RBRERARG M - B REBWHZAHE
FERPAREALZERRT BEARBHEMET
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RS EIE e

TO THE MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 54 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

HEBLEGNBEMEEERAT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BERHERm®

Key Audit Matter

BREETER

How the matter addressed in our audit
RIZE N 2 BT AR B ZE1E

Impairment assessment of loan receivables and loan
interest receivables
FEW S 50 % FE W B SR B R IR E AT M

As disclosed in note 20, the Group had loan receivables
and loan interest receivables from customers amounting
to HK$181,197,000 and HK$17,014,000 respectively as at
31 March 2017.

As part of the Group's credit review policy, management
assessed the recoverability of each loan receivable
individually. As at 31 March 2017, the impairment
allowance made for doubtful loan receivables and loan
interest receivables amounted to HK$22,064,000.

The identification of doubtful debts in the individual
assessment requires significant management
judgements about whether objective evidence for
impairment exists, taking into consideration various
factors, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. It also requires
management to make significant estimates when
determining the estimated recoverable amount of the
doubtful loan receivables. Accordingly, the impairment
assessment of the loan receivables and loan interest
receivables was a key audit matter.

BIM 0 HE - BEER-_F—+F=f=+—
Aok BB 5 2 % i B R B KR 5 B A
181,197,000 %8 7T }2.17,014,000 8 7T ©

fEh BEEEEBMEEZ 5 SREERFHG
EERGE S RE N B = A=+ —
A EptAE kR SRR SRR e RORHE R E R
22,064,000 7T °

RERIFH SRR REAS RS FETBREEREL
BEAEEEHE ETZRSEAR  BREESEBALZ
B ATEE B EWGKRCE - BIEE AR EE WA
B2 fhat A B S BEE L EAMER - B - BUIRE
R R E RN B RIBRME T S AR SR EH -

1. We obtained understanding of and tested the key
controls over the impairment assessment of loan
receivables and loan interest receivables and
focused on:

(@)
(0)

The identification of impairment events;

The assessment and approval processes for
the determination of the extent to which
impairment should be made,

The governance over the impairment
assessments processes, including the
continuous re-assessment by management
that the impairment policy is being
calibrated in a way which is appropriate for
the impairment risks in the Group’s loan
portfolios.

2. For impaired loan receivables and loan interest
receivables, we have ascertained whether the
loss event had been identified in a timely manner
and examined the expected future cash flows
and the valuation of collateral held, if any, and
compared management’s estimate to external
evidence where applicable.

3. For loan receivables and loan interest receivables
which were not considered by management to be
impaired, we have performed testing to ascertain
whether any impairment events had occurred.
We considered the payment performance and
financial condition of these customers and other
relevant factors.

1. AR BED R R A0 ORI R U B R K M B B
FIRRER Az T BRG] WES

BRREEM
T R RERR E 2 AT s ML ERR P

HRETERF 2SS RETEERE
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2. BORERKERMERERMEFEMS @ A
R DT RS KRR EBREM iR FA
ARBREMAFHER® (B) 2418 - AL
REEEHINBEE (HEM) fEh 2 b5t -
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EARESM - ARBEI D BHEZSTEF 2K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FRAEETERm®

Key Audit Matter

BREENEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
FERBE 2 B NAREZER

Impairment assessment of other intangible assets
Hh \E & ERER {4

As disclosed in note 17, the Group had other intangible
assets amounting to HK$12,000,000 as at 31 March 2017.
The Group's other intangible assets represented three
exclusive licences on 3 patents granted by the holders to
a subsidiary acquired in the year 2013.

For the purpose of assessing the impairment of other
intangible assets, the management engaged an
independent professional valuer (the “Valuer”) to
determine their recoverable amounts using the value-in-
use basis. Significant management judgements were
involved in the determination of the key assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations, including
estimated development and production timelines,
estimated sales volume, estimated selling price of the
products, growth rate of the revenue, cost and sales
volume, discount rate and forecast period.

Due to the significance of the assets to the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position, we had
identified the impairment assessment of other intangible
assets as one of the key audit matters.

AL 17 PSR - BEEER _T—+HF=A="1—
Bz B b M2 & 7 /3 12,000,0008 7T ©  HEEZ HA
BRUEEERAEAR S —=FRMEKEHBLRRE
ZIEFEMNZ = BRAFAE -

A EEMBTEERENS - EEEREBLERM
BE(MEERM D ZEREEEEEE KOS - BE
AEEREEERCIZERIREREEEHE - 2
EERERRMEERRR B HEE EmcbefE
B Wa  RAKRHEERRR MK RIFRH -

ENEEY BEEGRANBRARZEEMNE - A
gaﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ@ﬁ%%@%ﬁq:—IHE%%%%
TE o

1. We discussed with the management of the
Company and the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Company the valuation
methodology, bases and assumptions used in
determining the recoverable amount of other
intangible assets or the cash generating unit to
which the assets belong.

2. We checked the objectivity, competence and
capability of the valuer.

3. We have assessed the methodology and
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for determining the recoverable amount of the
other intangible assets or the cash generating
unit to which the assets belong.

4. We have checked with the comparable data
either from internal or external sources, on a
sample basis, the relevance and reasonableness
of the estimated sales volume, estimated selling
price of the products, growth rate of the revenue,
cost and sales volume, discount rate.

5. We assessed the reasonableness of the timelines
for development and production schedules.

6.  We have engaged our independent valuation
specialist to assist us in evaluating the
reasonableness and appropriateness of the
valuation performed by the management of the
Company and the Company's valuer.

1. ARBECRETEMEVEAEXEEMBR S
EEBU B BERRBMET A - EfER
Rz ERREEREN BEARNRBZEVE
EIHEMETTHR

2. AERHAEREHEMIFEIE  BERKkEES -

3. AEHEMEHINETHEMBELEERLEEM
BIREEL Nz A O SRR B EREEMR
AR -

4. ANEHEGAEHE  EmEFEE Y
AR HERRE © RITIREE LA R A 2
FRE AR AT B LB BUR -

5. AZBECHEERMEERBERZAMEMN -
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AIEREN BEARGEMMETHERSSE

RiaE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we conclude that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
v WR A IS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liabilities to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &/&4an
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B ED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
v WR A IS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B ED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ping Kai.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ping Kai
Practising Certificate Number P02976

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

ReEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =2 —+tF=A=+—HIFE

2016

HK$'000

TR

Continuing Operations BHEREEK
Revenue &= 7(a) 153,572 123,372
Cost of sales SHE AR (118,518) (93,528)
Gross profit EF 35,054 29,844
(Loss)/gain on held-for-trading BIEEBEREZ

investments (E518),/Was 8 (279) 4,565
Other income E U A 7(b) 3,956 378
Administrative and other operating TR R E AL &R

expenses (41,130) (44,872)
Research and development cost It B2 AR AN 32(c) (9,500) -
Impairment of deposit paid for FUEBYE - BB KRS

acquisition of property, plant ZEI®RE

and equipment - (15,026)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEUE E & B S 2 F 2

and loan interest receivables BEEE 20 (22,064) -
Impairment loss on other intangible HEEREERERE

assets 17 (34,000) (16,000)
Loss before tax from KREFBELERTZ

continuing operations BrEERTE B 9 (67,963) 41,111)
Income tax expense A8 i 10 - (656)
Loss for the year from REFBELSEEB 2

continuing operations REEFIE (67,963) (41,767)
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Loss from discontinued operations REBRIEEKZEE 1 - (5,669)
Loss for the year NEEFBE (67,963) (47,436)
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consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
GEERREMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —Z—+F=A=+—ALFE

Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hh2HE (Bx) k% :
income:

Items that may be reclassified B g nEZ B

2017
—E—tF

HK$'000
FTERT

2016
—ET—RF
HK$'000

TR

subsequently to profit or l0ss: ZHE -
Exchange difference arising on BMEGINETSEA 2B
translation of foreign operations =58 (2,450) (3,010)
Release of translation reserve PRI IR 31 - 40
Other comprehensive expense rEEHMEEBAX
for the year (2,450) (2,970)
Total comprehensive expense AEEZHBAZELE
for the year (70,413) (50,406)
Loss for the year attributable to A QFEEALFEEEGER
owners of the Company
— from continuing operations — REFBERLEE (64,708) (36,498)
— from discontinued operations — RADKRILER = (5,669)
(64,708) (42,167)
Loss for the year attributable to  FFiEREZREFEEEILER
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations — REFBEEER (3,255) (5,269)
— from discontinued operations — REBKRIELER - -
(3,255) (5,269)
(67,963) (47,436)
Total comprehensive expense AEEREEHEB AL :
for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RARHER A (67,158) (45,137)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (3,255) (5,269)
(70,413) (50,4006)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

ReEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —Z—+t & =A=1+—HIFE

Loss per share: BREE 13
From continuing and discontinued RERFELE RERIEER
operations
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARGE) (1.30) (1.02)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — B8 OB() (1.30) (1.02)
From continuing operations KEFEREER
— Basic (HK Cents) — ZEAXR B (1.30) (0.88)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 858 (B (1.30) (0.88)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BT ALSEEMBERER 2 —3D
consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e ISR R

Asat31March 20177 R=E—+tF=A=+—H

2016
—EF—RF

HK$'000

TET

Non-current assets IRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 16 10,623 11,822

Other intangible assets EmEEEE 17 12,000 46,000

Available-for-sale investment A ERE 18 2,509 2,509
Total non-current assets FRBEEMLEE 25,132 60,331
Current assets REEE

Inventories FE 19 - 7

Trade and other receivables JE LA B 51 N L i IR IR 20 238,940 247,187

Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 21 3,220 12,640

Tax in advance FEH RIS 744 1,176

Cash and bank balances He MIRTTER 22 142,619 40,301
Total current assets REBEEHAT 385,523 301,311
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables JE A BR SR I B Ath FE A5 5K IE 23 42,365 43,047
Total current liabilities REBAEHETE 42,365 43,047
Net current assets REBEEFHE 343,158 258,264
Net assets EEFE 368,290 318,595
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R R

Asat31March 2017 R—E—+t&F=A=+—H

2016
—F—REF

HK$'000

FHT

Capital and reserves R 1

Share capital R A 25 227,536 189,613

Reserves G 186,254 171,227
Equity attributable to the owners of  ZNA S#EH A Bz

the Company 413,790 360,840
Non-controlling interests IR R = (45,500) (42,245)
Total equity ERERE 368,290 318,595

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2017
and are signed on behalf of the Board by:

LU zZhigiang
Executive Director
HITEE

BEFIM EE R Fr e M mR 2 — 8D

B¢ b
#
E>

2R -E—tLFRAT=ZBHEREET
BRaMBmER > YA TIEERREFER

CHUI Kwong Kau
Executive Director
HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 20177 B#E=—Z—+F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTREARLE

Share Non-

Share Share Special options  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Subtotal interests
Bx  RGEE  KHRE  ERERE EXGfE  RAEE Nt EERES

(Note 35 (Note 35 (Note 35 (Note 35
(b)) (b)) (b)) (b))
(Ri3¥35 (&35 (i35 (Ri3¥35
(b)) (b)) (b)) (b)iv)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TERL BT B TEL Tt T BT T AT

At 31 March 2015 and RZE-EFZA=1-AR

1 April 2015 ZZ-nEMB-A 158,013 524,799 (39.99) 1,975 799 (343,895) 301,293 (36976) 264317
Loss for the year - - - - - (42,167) (42167) (5,269) (47 436)
Exchange difference arising on B8

translation of foreign operations - - - - (3010 - (3010 - (3010
Release of translation reserve BRER A - - - - iy - 40 - 40
Total comprehensive expense TEERERLER

for the year - - - - (2970 42,167) (45,137) (5,269) (50,406)
Issue of orcinary shares under share  RERGEERTEER

placing 31600 68,361 - - - - 99,961 - 99,961
Recognition of equity-ettled B ER A AEERIRR

share-based payments EER AR - - - 4723 - - 4723 - 4723
Share options lapsed BlRER M - - - (6,298) - 6298 - - -
At 31 March 2016 R-8-REZB=t-H 189,613 593,160 (39.99) B 217 (379,764) 360,840 (42,245) 318,59
At 31 March 2016 and RZB-AEZA=1-AK

1 April 2016 —E-RERR-R 189,613 593,160 (39,998) - 217) (379,764) 360,340 (42,245) 318,595
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - (64,708) (64,708) (3,255) (67,963)
Exchange difference arising on BEENEREL ELER

translation of foreign operations - - - - (2,450) - (2,450) - (2,450)
Total comprehensive expense AEERERRAH

for the year - - = = (2,450) (64,708) (67,158) (3,255) (70,413)
Issue of ordinary shares under share  BEROEEZTERR

placing 37,923 82,185 - - - - 120,108 - 120,108
At 31 March 2017 R-E-tEZA=1-H 227,536 675,345 (39,998) - (4,621) (444,472) 413,790 (45,500) 368,290

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMFIFE AL EHGEA MBIz 2 —25 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Cconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERMER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =2 —+tF=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FE&xT T 7T
cash flows from operating REREEB2HERE
activities
Loss before tax PR RTS8
Continuing operations BB EET (67,963) 41,117)
Discontinued operations BARIEER = (5,669)
(67,963) (46,780)
Adjustments for: ERTISIEELFAE
Interest income FE A (2) (372
Impairment of deposit paid for PUEEYIZE - BB REREX
acquisition of property, plant Nzl & RE
and equipment - 15,026
Depreciation of property, Yz - BB MEETE
plant and equipment 7,043 8,862
Impairment loss on other intangible B\ & EREEE
assets 17 34,000 16,000
Loss/(gain) on held-for-trading HIEEERE
investments BB () 8 279 (4,565)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBARZEE 27 - 4,095
Equity-settled share-based payments — LAREZRS 77 =045 & K LARS 1)
BRI = 4,723
Forfeiture of agents' deposit IR IRET & (3,934) -
Impairment loss on trade and i s AR R R LAt PR MR IR
other receivables 2 RREEE 20 22,641 51
Operating loss before changes in EEESEBA L LEEIE
working capital (7,936) (2,960)
Decrease in inventories FERL 7 40
Increase in trade and JFEE UK B R e LA B L IR
other receivables o (14,393) (96,197)
Decrease in held-for- BIEEBERERYD
trading investments 9,140 30,170
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FEAT BR 3 N ELAth AT 3R
other payables #n, O ) 3,251 4,579)
Net cash used in operations EIBATREIR & H R (9,931) (73,526)
Income tax refund/(paid) REg /(BN FER 432 (3,565)
Net cash used in operating activities 42 ¥ TR & 558 (9,499) (77,091)
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=Z—+t & =A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FTER FAT
Cash flows from investing RERELZBZRERE
activities
Interest received BUFE 2 372
Purchase of property, plant and EEWME - WE KRB
equipment (6,078) (77)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HE—HWNEBRARZRE
a subsidiary MAEHE 27 - 6,280
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (FTFE),/FTi8
investing activities e F5 (6,076) 6,575
Cash flows from financing REMETBHZRERE
activities
Net proceeds from issue of BT BRI IR F R
ordinary shares 25 120,108 99,961
Net cash generated from financing BEEBMSIRE F5E
activities 120,108 99,961
Net increase in cash REeERBESESEYIEM
and cash equivalents R 104,533 29,445
cash and cash equivalents atthe FHzBERBEELEEY
beginning of the year 40,301 12,099
Effects of foreign exchange rate NS R BB v 528
changes (2,215) (1,243)
cash and cash equivalents atthe FARZBEERBEEZEEY
end of the year 142,619 40,301
Analysis of cash and cash RERREEENIN
equivalents
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITEH 142,619 40,301

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMIFI TR ZEGAUBREL — 5 ©

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is situated
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The
principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Unit
2704, 27/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses; (i) trading business; (iii) money
lending business; (iv) securities investment; and (v) hotel
operations (ceased business in the year ended 31 March
2016). The Group had discontinued its hotel operations and
related businesses in the year ended 31 March 2016 (see
note 11).

BEREH
EREGNERMEBEEGRAR (ARE])
REFASBEERRE(KRET) RASESTE
ML RERRER AT - ERGONE S5
BRGMBER AR (B BIZER ([812
1) £ o AN B EE I 3 3 Be iz B Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies « RARIEBR A2 EBEE S
MR BEETHEFR 1682005 F@F LAR
2712704

HAVBHRERARNQFDEEEBT(E
TTDHIGR

RRABRIREEBR AR - KRB REMBA
Al(mEIAER ) TEREINRELSE
AR - (VB HEH (i) EXR
(VERKE : RWBEELEERBE-Z
—ANEZA=T-BULFEEX) - A&E
REBE-T-A"F=ZA=1T—HBLEFEER
IR EEE S EMARBEER (RHE1) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins
on or after 1 April 2016. These amendments have been
applied by the Group for the first time in the current year

unless otherwise specified.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS (as defined below) 28
(Amendments)
BB BmELERIZE 109
BV BEHRELERFE 125 &
EAETEN(EER T
2528 5% (1&5])
HKFRS 11 (Amendments)
BB BHRELEAZE 1157
(85T
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BERGENE 1R UBET)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)
BB ERE 16 LB B2 %R
2385k (1£7])
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)
BB ERE 16 LB B2 %R
415 (1B5])
HKFRSs (Amendments)
BB BHmE LR (BF])

2. ERAMTRESITTEEMER
HEA(ERMERSER])

RAFEER  AEECERATHE LSS
fag((FESMASDEMAR-F
—/NFUA— BEARRGR 2 &5t B R Hl
R BB BREE 2 ZRER - 5
BRAEN  AEERAFERNERERLL

Fi&5T -

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

X
pis
i}
o)
a3

F ERER A ABRZBISMER

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
WS K EER 8T REAN

Disclosure Initiative

wEEETE

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
ERAEZ CIEREERE

Agriculture: Bearer Plants
B ERERED

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
BEVBREER - _FE T -MFRHZFEU0E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
mainly clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all its
subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with HKFRS
10. The Company is not an investment entity. Also,
given that the Company is a listed entity, the
consolidation exception set out in the amendments
will not be applicable to the Company and hence the
application of these amendments has had no impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state
that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other
standards should be applied. The amendments also
require that a joint operator to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards
for business combinations. The amendments require
prospective application; prospectively in annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Group did not have any such transactions in the
current year and hence the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

©

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity needs
not provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is not
material (even if the HKFRS contains a list of specific
requirements or describes them as minimum
requirements). The amendments also give guidance
on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. The
amendments emphasise that an entity should
consider whether to provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in
HKFRSs is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.
Furthermore, the amendments require that an
entity’s share of the other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method should be presented separately from
those arising from the Group, and should be
separated into the share of items that, in accordance
with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. The application of these
amendments has not resulted in any impact on the
presentation of financial performance or financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

@

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue-based amortisation is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. The
amendments states that such a presumption can only
be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

o when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

o when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated. With
regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did
not use revenue-based depreciation and
amortisation method and hence the
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group's financial position and financial
performance. Rather, the Group has been using
the straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets respectively.

With regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did not
use revenue-based depreciation and amortisation
method and hence the amendments did not have any
impact on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance. Rather, the Group has been using the
straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(e) The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a
bearer plant that is a living plant that:

()  is used in the production or supply of
agricultural produce;

(i) is expected to bear produce for more than one
period; and

(i) has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce except for incidental scrap
sales.

The amendments require that biological assets that
meet the definition of a bearer plant should be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The
produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The application of these amendments has had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements as
the Group is not engaged in agricultural activities.

(f)  The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS,
which are summarised below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held for
distribution to owners (or vice versa). The
amendments clarify that such a change should be
considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5
regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

W= =T EEERE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

()

(continued)

Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide
additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing
contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in
relation to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the
rate used to discount post-employment benefit
obligations should be determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds. The assessment of the
depth of a market for high quality corporate bonds
should be at the currency level (i.e. the same
currency as the benefits are to be paid). For
currencies for which there is no deep market in such
high quality corporate bonds, the market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.
The Group did not have any defined benefit scheme.

The application of these amendments has had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

2. ERAMITRESITITEEMER
FHEA((EFEEMBHSEEMN ]

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#8)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9

BB mELERIZE N

HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

BB BHmEERNE SR REBYE
AR B 1598 (BE])

HKFRS 16

EREPBHRELEAZE 1657

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

EEGTHERE 7R (UEE])

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

EREEERFE 125 (BF])

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BRBMBHmEERNE 25 (B5])
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
EXEEGFERFE 405 (BF])

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB BHREERNE0RLELGST
HERIEE 28 5% (1&RT)
HKFRS (Amendments)
BEEGBHRELEN (BF])
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
a5 (BEEMBRERELZES)
— RBE2%R

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

AEBWERFRAATEEMERESZ
Fa] RISERT BB M ME &R -

Financial Instruments®

BT A

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
BEEAKNKE

Leases®

%E‘EE\G)

Disclosure Initiative®

WERETEIO

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses®

MABEBEEREERIEEE"

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions®?

SERFAEURNDABER 2 NHRZ 5@

Transfers of investment property®@

HERIGEYHO

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

REEHEBENRSAE L XHEENEIIITRA®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

BB RELEN T —OFE T - NFRB 2 FEHEC
Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration®
HNER 5 R FARRER

1 1 o

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ? RZZ—N\F—A— Bk A&FR 2 FE 8 A8

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 E RZZ—NF—A— B AMEFRR 2 FE8R A

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ‘ i T B Bk AR B 1A 2 5 JE HIfR AR AR
determined ° RZE—+tHF A AT \F—-A—Hzzi&

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 GG 2 AR - @A o

January 2018, as appropriate.
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e

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and was further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets; and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI") measurement category
for certain financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measure at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment assessment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 adopts an expected credit 10ss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit 10ss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EHAMITIREETETEBMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SHER((FEMERSHERD))

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#8)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) ERAMBHRELEREISHN HEITA ]
(#)

. With regard to the general hedge accounting . YR eHIETmES C BENK
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of MR E QIR D IR I B A e s AR
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in 399 B IO 2 = B ¥ b e 5
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been 4 o IRIER B EMEENEIHE O
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for BAEEREE et RIE SERXS
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types BEHTFANETEY BRI 21EM[AS
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments EREAEFRITAZTAEANANE
and the types of risk components of non-financial BIEEE et RIE 2 IEMEIEE 2
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In B LR o HAN AR E
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled AR E - WA [E&ERIER | [RABIE
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic o E AR BEEBPE(MG o
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge MEERESAENEEE AT R
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced MEIREE)ZIRTE -
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of REENAET L E BT ERELR ST

HKFRS 9. The directors of the Company believe that it is SE o KDFEERE  EAEETKE G
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated BB s A I Thes v W AA1T o
financial statements until the Group has completed the

assessment.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Clarifications

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the

related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Clarifications (continued)
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3. Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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e

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS
17, has been replaced by a model which requires a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability to be recognised for
all leases by lessees except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. Specifically, the right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash
flows will also be affected as operating lease payments
under HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments
will be split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in
the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. On initial application of the amendment,
entities are not required to provide comparative information
for preceding periods.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of
that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments
retrospectively. However, on initial application of the
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the
earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening
retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between
opening retained earnings and other components of equity.
Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKAS 12 (Amendments). The directors of the Company
believe that it is impractical to disclose the impact in these
consolidated financial statements until the Group has
completed the assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EHAMITIREETETEBMER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ FEMEEEED ]

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#8)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and ERMBRELERNE 29 (185 [ o

Measurement of Share-based Payment BRIAEURDAER ZNIRRXS ]

Transactions

The amendments clarify the following: ZEETTEMmmT

o In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share- o RAHEHURESAREERURNDAE
based payment, the accounting for the effects of W RAFERE  FEERTR

vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow the
same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-
based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified as
equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-
based payment would have been classified as equity-
settled had it not included the net settlement feature.

A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled should be accounted for as follows: the
original liability is derecognised. The equity-settled
share-based payment is recognised at the
modification date fair value of the equity instrument
granted to the extent that services have been
rendered up to the modification date. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability at the
modification date and the amount recognised in
equity should be recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (continued)

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements or any withholding tax
arrangements with tax authorities in relation to share-
based payments and hence the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in
the future will have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the re-measurement of investments retained
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group did not enter into these transactions in the
current year. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these amendments may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements in future periods
should such transactions arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which collective term includes
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in the exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

HRREEW

HAN  RBBBETMS - AFEEETHRE
ATFEHE @A SR A B2 REA
HEHATEGERB I ESUTHAE
— CRE®H - HEMT

s FEMBABEBENTEBHERER
BEZABRME LHREERAEEL
B CRFE) -

s E_NBABEBRFE -AMERHME
PAON - BB ERBENERAME
BRZGAEE Rk

s FZABAUBRAHEEXREZ
TRBEGABE -

RETEBBVBREEN 2 AN BEHRER
ZREREEHAE - AR RBRER - MBER
HE - AR RBREFERRZER N2
BEE A WARXHZE®8 - ZF5MH
SAREBRBRRDREBEAEERLZEMBREE
BRABRATEAEZEMRERMIEL - B
RRBHEEMIRL TNBEASR 2 BER
BEREEEDL A 2 &% - BRAERT AL
HZE b AER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 6.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E —ZE—tE=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

5. FERBER@
(@) HmEREE @)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the result of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlled
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified that to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSS).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiary to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

J deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Business combinations (continued)

5. FERHBER@
(b) ¥BE6t@

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(b) Business combinations (continued) (b) E¥¥KE6tm)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(c) Goodwill (c) E&

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment 10ss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —ZF—+F=A=+—RAILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold
and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
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reliably;
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associated with the transaction will flow to the AREER: &
Group; and
o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect o = O FEA R AL
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service rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income arising from sales of financial instruments is
recognised on the completion of transfer of risks and
rewards to the transferee.

Dividend income from investments (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available
for-sale investments) is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued) (e) HEM

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Ccontingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange difference arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(8)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations (including comparatives) are
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expense items (including comparatives) are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or 0ss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@

(continued)
(h) Employee benefits (h) EEFF
Retirement benefits BIKEF

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong operate a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on
percentage of Employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when employees render services during the
year. The Group's obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based payment benefits

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 5(s)
().
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

5.

W= =T EEERE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred
assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including owner
occupied land and buildings held for use in the supply
of service, or administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below),
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEEE TF5% 2 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%—-33"/3% per annum
i - HEREE FF15% £33"/,%
Motor vehicles 10%—-20% per annum
B BF10% £20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee
and overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets are
completed and ready for use, the carrying amount of
the assets will be reclassified to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets other than goodwiill (K) BEUIIZEFEE

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation commences when
the intangible assets are available for use.

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o It is technically feasible to complete the product
for it to be sold;

o Adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o The Group is able to sell the product;

o Sale of the product will generate probable
future economic benefits; and

o Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

5.

W= =T EEERE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets other than goodwill

U]

(continued)

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or l0ss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment l0ss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments

5. FESERm@®

(m) BIFETH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) B TR @

Effective interest method (continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Financial instruments (continued)

5. FERHBER@
(m) BT A @)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL”) (continued)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL (continued)

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or l0ss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) B TR @

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS
financial assets”)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BI TR @)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments,
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, are assessed for impairment on an
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass the credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) B TR @

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or 10ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BI TR @)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) B TR @

Effective interest method (continued)
Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BI TR @)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or l0ss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ=F

—aeaE =B = — (Bl lEE)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and
direct expenses that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated expenses to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hands, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

(n)

(0)

(p)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

W= =T EEERE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

(p)

(@)

5. FESERm@®

BRERSIAREE®

EREEENRZ AR R
BE R SefhATBUE E\'JEFETE@‘?&E@
RXRBE  BRIFR D EEN =

BEMERIK - Z@*ﬂﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁjfﬁ—
R ZRL I EATEZH AN
THEEHMAEEZEET  TE

pu)

BERSIABE  RIERLEENZ
Z A REMETRIK
B IEE

EREERBIAEEER 2 27
HEBNASREN B AREHME
DHRERS ARR BB ERE
BREEWE : /- B REES
VEREBRL LR 2 B 1A
FEPHY  ABERBEMBALZ
ERp=PNG]

HEEBR (MR FHEIT) BEEE
BN ER/FELE 2 FMH Jﬁ%ﬁi%
ERIEER XBELRTS®ETE
ok -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESHBE@

(continued)
(g) Discontinued operations (continued) () SRLEE®K@)
Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a DI AD R IEREERET 815
single amount is presented on the face of the WTEBEzE-—SEREaRER L
statement of profit or loss, which comprises: 275 :
e the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued . B4R IF 2T 2 BB % N 2B
operation; and B Rk
o the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the o REEERD R ¥R EESR
measurement to fair value less costs of HEHRR 7 A FEER SRS
disposal, or on the disposal, of the assets or RHEERBEES T EHREE
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued 2Bk SSkERE -
operation.
(r) Related parties () BEEBAL
For the purposes of these consolidated financial M ESEABRETMS © TH AT
statements, a person or an entity is considered to be HEERNTIEREEAHEAERS
related to the Group if as follows: 7)o
() A person, or a close member of that person’s (I  THALTSZAT ZFRERE
family, is related to the Group if that person: =5t
(1) has control or joint control over the ) BEAREEEGIERER
Group; eIl
(2) has significant influence over the Group; 2 HEREEHEAEATEN:
or B4
(3) is a member of key management R EBEAEBEIAEBRFT AR
personnel of the Group or a parent of the ZEEEBAR
Group.
or 54
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

W= =T EEERE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Q)

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 e B2 & B AR A R

The entity and the Group are the
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of another entity (or of an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

A person is identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of the parent of
the entity).

The enitly, or any member of the Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

5. FESERm@®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =%

—aeaE =B = — (Bl lEE)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued)

Close family members of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

(s)

entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Share-based payment transactions
(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(1)

Share options granted to employees

For share options granted to employees,
the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The effect of the change in estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained earnings.

()

(s)

5. FESERm@®

BREB AL @)
FEATZRBEAERN AT
XHBARFEZATHZZA
BYZERKRKE o

EERIBEENERABA LT 2HER
B ZXHWESBEBALRS -

URGABEREZNARRS
() UEBRLEXEERURGBER
ZH#HXE
(1) FHEERHBRE
RETFTEEZERER
T ESRBZAFE
SEMBEHBRENE D
HEZAFEEE @ IR
FEHENERESRH
58 FE IS hnfE s (BB AR AE
1#) -

AEBEREREHRER]
HUBHEKREBRERE
;B2 EE - BETES 2
T2 (WB)NEEER
A 5 78 P A 5 18 1E AR B

# o

ITEEAR R - BN
i 1R o 1 e 3R 2 SRR G B
BERMhOEE - (HiERE
REEB A BREZRERE
w A ARETE - BB
ARERERERR

BEHEBERBAF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Share-based payment transactions
(continued)
(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)
(2)  Share options granted to suppliers/
consultants
For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair value of
the goods or serves received. The fair
values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).

(i) Cash-settled share-based payment

transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

5. FERHBER@
(s) URBAERZARRS @)

(i)

(ii)

DgEm T NG ER ARG BEE

25 (&)

@) AR ER SRR LR
#
PR EmRBME T
R, BR 2 BARET
BAEREREARB 2 A
FEFE - EmEARBEZ
N EHNRSER AR
HEE Mk R% A B
RAEERERW® -
(B RE) L AR

mE -

UBEEEABERURGBEE
ZHHRE

AR ST A EE AN BE
RzNRME  AEEREER
FEFEMEIES W IRS KA
ELBE NEREHKR BE
BATESEHEEEFERE
Bk MERAFEZEAINE
R ©

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T EE AR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(u) Events after the end of the reporting

period

Events after the end of the reporting period that
provide additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

5.

FESHBE @
(t) ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ%

EDERENBRERMBHRERA
2HzEE  HREREIRD B LT
EASETRER M ERETE
RETFTAEBESRSTREREAE ZH
BERBER - M BEHRMS - FRIE
DEABBRULERBAREER M
REHEE  EEBRENEE  TFPER
SIRR - FED $HE sk B AR T 2
TEMEERREE T EMARLU B
AEREAEEN BT EETERE -
HERY TBEAZLEDENTAE L
MABARLE - AR ETTRE -

() BMEBMKRBREH

REBBASEERS HROMNK
MLXAFELLRRALTRENER
SNERHBERMREEMHBRRAES
I FEER A T RERT R - TER
HAEEHNRENREAVEEE -
AR A M ISR M P IE

W 88 & 2t A B fh 5t

fEr RAE REEEERENEABRT
BRRAEZEMAER  BRYURKREMFZ
FEEIMIEL - W EHER I -

HEr P REE 2 EERIF
NTRBBAARRZEIERR - UEREHRSE
HRENEHH T MBRFERNEERAR
ZERHEEFLEAHAE 2 T BARZ HET
BEEHMBEZRIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

6. FRREETFIERR &5 @)
AT TREE 2T ERR (&)

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group determines whether its other intangible
assets not yet available for use is impaired on an
annual basis. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of the asset or a cash-generating unit in
which the assets belongs exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation value
in use requires management to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of other intangible assets
as at 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$12,000,000 (31 March 2016: HK$46,000,000) after
recognising impairment losses to write down the
carrying amounts of the assets to their recoverable
amounts which were determined based on their
value in use as at 31 March 2017.

(i)

BEMEEEEZHE
REBERFEENRAIFEFER 2 HAb
BEEESSHBERE - WEEXE
EfMBRSEAEM EAESRE
AJ U El & 58 (BNA T E R L & AN B
AEEMmE cRe#E) - BIRTHIER
H-stEFEREERE SEENAR
HEESBHSEABMN 2HFIARRR
SnE WERBES CBIRE - DT
EmERene2BiE RERME
EENBEE 2 REERRELRIE
R_E—+tHFZA=Z+—HZFERE
EEETzAlEEEE  RZT—t
FZA=+—H HUMEFEEZE
TE{E %7 /412,000,000 70 ( —ZF — /N4
—AZ=+—H :46,000,000%&7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

6.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(ii)

Estimated impairment of loan receivables and
loan interest receivables

The Group makes impairment allowance for loan
receivables and loan interest receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the loan
receivables and loan interest receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. If there is objective evidence
that impairment loss on loan receivables and loan
interest receivables has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires significant judgement on whether the
objective evidence for impairment exists and
assessing the amount of impairment loss requires
significant estimates when determining the present
value of the expected future cash flows. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the
loan receivables and loan interest receivables and the
amount of impairment in the year in which such
estimate has been charged.

As at 31 March 2017, the impairment loss for loan
receivables and loan interest receivables amount to
HK$22,064,000 (31 March 2016: Nil).

6. FRREEIFIERR (&5 @)
A TREE 2T ERR (&)

(i) EREFREKEHFEFHEZ T
BiE
AR ER BRI B U E TR N R M B SRR R
AR E G (BREEBAD
B A58 FBEWGRRER) B A & K
Ko FE W E RN B R IR A H R (E B 4
MREEBRBERARKER LR
EFAESRECEHBRERSE - A
BIREBREERTERMBARKR
ERE(TERRMREENRKEERR
KB EEN R B A X (1Y)
SRR EOERNR)FRNRE
ZERERGE - BAIRERE - F
EHEEOHFERBRESBRELEXR
#IEr - mAHEREEESRER - AR
EEERAARBERRENREEE
HERMGE - WERAERFHINRRR
st BB ERNAF ET AR
FERWE RN EWERH B AN
REENHESE -

RZZE—+F=A=+—H ERE
FRERERF BREREBEA
22,064,000 (= F —~F = A
=+—8:&)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. BERSHFEIREE =)
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty AT EEEZ2ETERR (&)

(continued)

(iii) Depreciation (i) #wE
Iltems of property, plant and equipment are ME - HERREEBELNELEENE
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the EMstrERERTE  shst &G
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into HFEREE - AEBFTHRTEERN
account the estimated residual value. The Group stRIE R FE - DA E (T fn] ¥ 25 HA RS
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets S ITERS - AERERIRAE
regularly in order to determine the amount of EHBLUEEZBAELSRETF Wit
depreciation expense to be recorded during any R RirE (- BEMTMEEX
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the e QAHERERYETTHRE-
Group'’s historical experience with similar assets and RN-ZEBE—+E=A=+—0 Y%
taking into account of anticipated technological MR &R E 2 BREE 4 410,623,000
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods BT ZE—ARF=ZA=+—H:
is adjusted if there are significant changes from 11,822,000/ 7T) °

previous estimates. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment as at 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$10,623,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$11,822,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

7. REVENUE 7. &=
(@)  An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as (@) AEBERZKEZSTHOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Continuing operations FEEREER
Anti-aging and stem cell NWRERBAEENTER
technology businesses
— Provision of anti-aging services — RENEERS 686 7,923
— Leasing of anti-aging service —HEREERBTA
platform 3,180 -
3,866 7,923
Trading business BE¥EK
— Sales of electronic components — HEEFEME 121,873 95,148
Money lending business HE¥XE
— Interest income from loan — RERKEFZF SN
receivables 27,833 19,971
Securities investment business — E&%REEK
— Dividend income — RBIA = 330
153,572 123,372
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. kR m
(b)  An analysis of the Group's other income for the year by AEBERZHEMKASFTHOT :
is as follows:

2016
TR

HK$'000
THBT

Continuing operations FEEREER

Interest income on: FLEHA

— Bank deposits — BITER 2 6

— Other loan receivables — HihERE R - 366

Forfeiture of agents’ deposit (Note) 82Uk R IBET 4 (i) 3,934 -

Sundry income FHIEWA 20 6
3,956 378

Note: MiEE

The income arising from forfeiture of agents’ deposit amounting to SRR IBRT R E 4 2 WA 3,934,000 T ( ZF— /< F -

HK$3,934,000 (2016: Nil) due to the terms of agreements were ) TGS IR E B o

expired.

8. (LOSS)/GAIN ON HELD-FOR-TRADING 8. BEBEREZ(HEER) ke

INVESTMENTS
An analysis of the Group's (loss)/gain on an held-for-trading AEBFRAFEEEREZ (BB) WED
investments for the year is as follows: T :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Sales proceeds SHEPTIS A 11,205 42,444
Less: Cost of sales W SHERAR (12,681) (38,398)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERHEBEEIRE 2
investments (B18), W (1,476) 4,046

Fair value change on held-for-trading BEEEREZ AFEED
investments 1,197 519

(279) 4,565
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

9. LOSS BEFORETAX FROM CONTINUING 9. R HBEESEXEZBRNEE

OPERATIONS 15
Loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group REBREBEREELR 2B BIERDN
has been arrived at after charging: B TNBI &I -
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BEEEMHNE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits — e RHEMBER 10,840 13,009
— Contributions to defined contributions  — A& ZE 4% ZGR (@ FIEHEI 30
retirement benefits schemes 278 324
11,118 13,333
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN B &
— audit services — Bz 880 800
— non-audit services — B R 270 -
Depreciation of property, VI BB REREBITE
plant and equipment 7,043 8,356
Research and development cost B R AR 9,500 -
Impairment of deposit paid for TR E - BB R RE
acquisition of property, plant and X2 ETRRE
equipment - 15,026
Impairment loss on trade and JRE LT BR 0 % L At FE UL R IR 2
other receivables BERE 22,641 S1
Impairment loss on other intangible assets H b &2 & = Rl A &8 34,000 16,000
Legal and professional fees (Note) ERREEER (K 3,749 5,819
Operating lease rentals in respect of BRAHEMEZKEHERS
rented premises 10,311 9,975
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZERAEA 118,488 92,420
Note: During the year, there were no legal and professional fees which MiEE: FA UESERTARDBEMZUAEEIAEE
included equity-settled share-based payments granted to consultants FUABOREWZN R EZELEXER(ZZ
of the Company (2016: HK$$4,723,000). —7N4F 14,723,000 T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. PGB
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit RGEEENEMEEmWER ZTEHAS
or loss and other comprehensive income represents: e
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current tax BNEAR I8
Hong Kong BB = 736
PRC enterprise income tax AR EE TSR - -
- 736
Overprovision in prior year BEFEHEREG
Hong Kong B = (40)
PRC enterprise income tax A B 1R S FTIS A - -
- (40)
Tax reduction A
Hong Kong B - (40)
PRC enterprise income tax H BT EEFTISAR = -
- (40)
Deferred tax (Note 24) EIERTE (MI5E24) = -
- 656
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BENETRRF NERTEARBUR M AT
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for 16.5% (ZF — 7<% : 16.5%) st e »
the year.
PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the PRC FEIRRAEE Y IZERR B Bl 2 R
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits at Jin Rl DA R B3R 7T A R AR A o

the rates prevailing in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to

the loss before tax as follows:

SRz )
A B2 B A B B 4 B 2 AN [ PRSI  4
T A

2017 2016
—B—tF —T—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FBTT

Loss before tax from continuing

FEICEEBHRBATEE

operations (67,963) 41,111)
Notional tax on loss before tax, PRACATETIE 2 B & -

calculated at the tax rates applicable to ¥R =) EKE (= i

profits in the jurisdictions concerned FISBBHETHE (14,199) (9,838)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERMBA 2B E (600) ©"
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NATHIBR A 2 R A AT 0 #

and loss not allowable BB E 12,316 5,874
Tax effect of temporary difference AERERER 2B

not recognised o 121 (315)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RERMARIBEE

not recognised Wiges 2,362 5,123
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL RERREBEBEZ

not previously recognised Hgga = (47)
Tax reduction AR = (40)
Overprovision in previous year BT EREERE = (40)
Income tax expense for the year AEEERAY - 656

There was no income tax expense recognised in other
comprehensive income directly in equity (2016: Nil).

BEMSRA XN EM 2 E ks R E RN E
RHER(ZT—RF  \) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. B¥ILERE

On 19 June 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in the Wuyan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited (“Tianxi Hotel"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company to the purchaser for a consideration of
RMB5 million. The disposal was effected in order to
dispense with the need for further capital injection and to
avoid further costs that would be incurred for the lease of
hotel property and the management of the hotel operation.
Details of the disposal were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 June 2015. The details of assets
and liabilities disposed of and the calculation of loss on
disposal of Tianxi Hotel at the date of disposal are disclosed
in Note 27. As a result of the disposal, the Group
discontinued all of its hotel business. In accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, their results were therefore
classified as discontinued operations.

RZE—HFANATNAE  AEEUREA
E#5,000,0007C A 8 75 HEARRQF 2 H#E
2EMBRAREREEEREDLEARAA
(T%?‘EEJEJ)Z’E\%%TE Z&ﬁﬂjﬁ;lﬁm
B E S E S — */FFEZW$ ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%lﬁ
ZHBRARFAHA-_T-—AFA+H
B2 AhiRE FRLEEERBEZFE
UERREERBEEREREBRZTES
ERMIFE27 K EE - HNVETTHEER KK
BERIECEMBBEERR - RIBEFBUB
REENESR FIEHEZIERBEER
ERIEER] EEESIBRRERIEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
The result of the hotel business for the year ended 31

March 2016 is as follows:

11. BERIEEE W
BE—Z—AESASt+—BIFEREYE
T REmT

HK$'000
FHT

Revenue g 1,429
Cost of sales $HE R A (243)
Gross profit EF 1,186
Other income HA A 13
Administrative and other operating TEREMEERAS

expenses (2,773)
Loss before tax MRBATEE (1,574)
Income tax expense FTS iR -
Loss for the year EEEEE (1,574)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) HE—HHB AR ZEE

(MF5E27) (4,095)

Loss for the year from discontinued AAREEAEMEREELL

operations attributable to owners of EBCAEEEFER

the Company (5,669)
Loss per share: SREE
From discontinued operations REBLRIEER
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARGEMW) (0.14)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 58 OB (0.14)
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

11.

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations of the Group
has been arrived at after charging:

11. ERIEEE W
AEEREDARIEE BRHATEBDNG
T5I4E :

2016

—E—RF

HK$°000
TAT

Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA (BRREEEHS)
emoluments)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥re KRR 1,353
— Contributions to defined contributions — [AIFE S AL ROR AR R B 51
retirement benefits schemes -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BB REETE 506
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEREZEREEE 243

Cash flows generated from discontinued
operations of the Group

FEEERIEXEBELEZRESRE

2016
—E—RF

HK$'000
THAT

Operating activities KA TS (487)
Investing activities HEEE (21)
Financing activities BEEE) -
Net cash outflows HWEmEFE (508)
DIVIDEND 12. &R

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the
year ended 31 March 2017, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

HE_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILEFEITEK
i ERFEREFRE - BMEHRIAR
MEZBREARE(ZT—RF &) -

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T EE AR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the following data:

13. BEREGE
(a) BREAEE

FRENBRIIRE TISEE

2016
NS

HK$'000
T

2017
—E—tF

HK$'000
TR

Loss for the year attributable to KRREHER AL
owners of the Company AFEEEE
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (64,708) (36,498)
— from discontinued operations — REBKRILER = (5,669)
— from continuing and discontinued — R BIFELL K
operations BEIEER (64,708) (42,167)

Weighted average number
BRI &

of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April RO H— EI ZEBETEBR 4,740,332,805  3,950,332,805
Effect of ordinary shares issued EETEERZTE 220,782,027 187,786,885
4,961,114,832 4,138,119,690

(b) Diluted loss per share

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company did
not have any potential ordinary shares. For the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Company did not have any
dilutive potential ordinary shares as the exercise price
of the Company’s share options granted under Share
Option Scheme was higher than the average market
price. The computation of diluted loss per share did
not assume the exercise of those share options.
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss
per share for the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016.

(b) BREBEEE
RBEZE-_Z—tF=A=+—HILF
B ARRWEMEMEELTBR - B
HE_ZT-—R"EF=ZA=1+—HLFE "
RSP E 2 AN AR B
RiEZTEESRTFETHE A28
jiﬂﬁﬂi/gﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁfgz IR AT

AESREEERBYERRITEZXS
E%HXT%E BHE_Z—+tFR-ZT—RX
FoA=T—HLFE GREEE
BEGREREIEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segment information is based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, being the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (“CEQ"), which is the Group's chief
operation decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of
allocating resources to, assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Anti-aging and stem Provision of anti-aging

cell technology services; distribution of

businesses biomedical and life science
products; health check and
beauty service; and leasing
of anti-aging service platform
Trading of electronic
components and metals
Provision of loan financing

(i) Trading business

(i) Money lending

business

(iv) Securities investment — Trading and investment of
business securities

(v) Hotel operation — Operation of hotel
business (discontinued
in the year ended 31

March 2016)

14. H3EEH

AEBZEENRERTDIREABRER
B ZEREHEBRRKERRAAIARTR
TTBARE ([T ])) EHEMA - UER
SEEIBLEREA(TEIELERRADD
FLER T AN K B S EH R AL B DA R 7T
HERR -

RIBBEBMBREENESH  AEEBZLK
ENRATREDEMAT

() mEzEkHE — RHARZRS:
BEESITES DIEEMEZRE
mEIEER B

NEBRES « kI8

ERRERHT A

(i) EHEB — BEREEfHHLE
%
(i) MEFRH — REERBERS

(V) BHREXRY — BERNEES

) BEEEXEE — KERIE
(REzE—=
7/\£'E:)E]
=+—HI%F
BEKILEE)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. ¥EEEH @)

No operating segments identified by the CEO have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
5. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the CEO monitors the results,
assets and liabilities to each reportable segments on the
following bases:

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each
segment including items disclosed in other segment
information below, net of administrative and other
operating expenses directly attributable to each segment
without allocation of corporate income and expenses,
impairment loss on other intangible assets, impairment of
deposit paid for property, plant and equipment, impairment
loss on loan receivables and loan interest receivables and
loss on disposal of a subsidiary.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
intercompany payables and other corporate liabilities.

REBAREE 2 A HE 08 - WEA O

BITRARER 2 EEDHE -

Al RE DB 2GR BR AR S i 2 NS
BesBRAR - BIEERDERKRERFF
it ITHAREIRIA T ER E XA RE SR
ZERE BERBE:

DREBEEVB AN, (EE) - 8ER
TXEMHBEHREZEE  MEEOR
BEERGETREEMEERS  MASEE
BUWARFX - R ETZEERERRE - 3
WE  BEEREXNZTRRE - BEE
R M B SN SR E B 1 K HE — R T B
NS

DREEBREMEANEE - BIVEE MR
PEE  ETBRREAREEREFIEREME

DHRBBERRIBEREEZENERALE

bR FOR - E N B AR EENRIE M E
BRI -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 9BEE @)
Information regarding the above segments is reported B LMo EZERZYMT -
below:
(@) Segment revenue and results (@) PEWMIFSRXEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RELSEER BREER
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Inter- Hotel
technology Trading lending  investment Segment operation
husinesses business business business  elimination Sub-total business
RRER
i) &% bili3
RiTER 55K HEER REEE  SEEUH Nt EEEE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR BT TER TER AR TR TER
Revenue ey
External customers HREF 3,866 121873 27,833 - - 153,572 - 153,572
Inter-segment pLil] - - - - - - - -
Total a8 3,866 121,873 27,833 - - 153,572 - 153,572
Segments results EES (22,574) (839) 26,499 (279) = 2,807 = 2,807
Impairment loss on loan receivables  EMERREREFAIEHE
and loan interest receivables REBE 22,064 - 22,064
Impairment loss on other intangble ~ AMEVAERESE
assets (34,000) - (34,000)
Unallocated corporate income AOBEERA - - -
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBEERY (14,706) - (14,706)
Loss before tax BREEE (67,963) - (67,963)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. EEH @
(@) Segment revenue and results (continued) (@) PEWR=ERFESE @)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations

Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Inter- Hotel

technology Trading lending investment Segment operation

Dusinesses business husiness husiness glimination Sub-total husiness

] B
f ] i
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 ( HKS'000

TAL Tin T THR ¥y Tian

Revenue ¢

External customers HREF 7923 95,148 19971 330 - 123312 1429 124,801

Inter-segment HER - - - - - - - -
Total &8 7923 95,148 1991 30 - 123312 1429 124,801
Segments restits Lk (15,630) (3,060) 18779 4,89 - 4984 (1574) 3410
Impairment of deposit paid for BN  BRRSESH

acquisition of property, ZEIERE

plant and equipment (15,026) - (15,026)
Impaiment loss on other intanglole 2t EFEEFERE

assets (16,000 - (16,000)
Unallocated corporate income j 366 - 366
Unallocated corporate expenses (15,439) - (15,435)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 4,095) (4,099)
Loss before tax (@) (5,669 (46,780)
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 9BEE @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) P EEERAR

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

BEBERY BAILEE

Anti-aging

& stem cell Money Securities Hotel

technology Trading lending  investment operation

businesses business business business Sub-total business

REER

B £5 BE
RS E55K REXER REXHK it BEEY am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERL ThRT THET TERL ThT THT
Segment assets HEAE 26,022 39,117 225,872 3,220 294,231 - 294,231
Unallocated assets APRAE 116,424 - 116,424
Consolidated assets GREE 410,655
Segments liabilties PERE 37,09 718 917 - 38,731 - 38,731
Unallocated liabilities FAOBAE 3,634 - 3,634
Consolidated liabilities GAEfE 42,365

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations

Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities
technology Trading lending investment operation
businesses business business husiness Sub-total business
BE
HEXE It
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAR ] T
Segment assets PREE 47,956 42,539 195473 12,640 298,608 - 298,608
Unallocated assets FOBEE 63,034 - 63,034
Consolidated assets FREE 361,642
Segments liabilities HERE 11,352 834 50 - 42,236 - 42,236
Unallocated liabilities RAABEE 811 - 811
Consolidated liabilities ZABE 43,047
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 9B E @)
(c) Other segment information (c) HEiboEER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEBERY BALEE
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Hotel
technology Trading lending  investment operation
businesses business business business Sub-total business Total
REER
B #5 BE
RS E5%% BEXS REXH it EEER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERL THRT THET TERL THET FHET
Interest income* FIEBA - 2 - - 2 - 2
Interest expenses FERY = = = = = = =
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 5,048 1,576 - - 6,624 - 6,624
Research and development cost" H&p; 4" 9,500 - - - 9,500 - 9,500
Impairment loss on other HinERaERESSE"
intangible assets" 34,000 - - - 34,000 - 34,000

Impairment of loan receivables  FEME R ERE DR

and loan interest receivables”  F| 8 FUERE" - - 22,641 - 22,641 - 22,641
Additions to non-current WEAEEREHRY
segment assets during PEEE
the year 19 - - - 19 - 19
* Interest income excluded in revenue * NEREERE 2 FLEHA
B Excluded in segment results but was regularly provided to B T ADEESE  BETHMEZEERE
CODM AR

Discontinued
Continuing 0 operations
¥ Ed)
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Hotel
technology Trading lending investment operation
businesses business business business Sub-total business Total
i

) § NG
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'00!

Interest income* FS WA - 6 - - 6 - 6
Interest expenses femE% - - - - - - -
Depreciation and amortisation 7% J 4 5,142 279 - - 794 506 8447
Impairment of other HimyEERE"
intangible assets" 16,000 - - - 16,000 - 16,000
Impairment of deposit paid for iM% « BERBEXN
acquisition of property, ZEEHE"
plant and equipment” - 15,026 - - 15,026 - 15,026
Addlitions to non-current REAFERERTD
segment assets during PEEE
the year 5 50 - - 55 2 71
* Interest income excluded in revenue * NEREERE 2 FLEHEA
B Excluded in segment results but are regularly provided to B TEADEEE  BEEFEHRFELERE
CODM AR
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or to which the goods were
delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets.

14. 9EEE @

(d) HEEZER
TERENEBOAEBEIRES 2
KRR AEEYE  BERRER
mRaE((BEERBEE]) FE
BB AR - BFZIWEMEHE
RIBHB R ERFERLE - 15
EERBEEI BB NEREE
BRFRCE (YL W RRET
T) RESRZEEME (REXE
EME)

Revenue from Specified

external non-current

customers assets

IREEZWE BEFRBDEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET TET

Hong Kong BB 28,034 14,522
PRC F 125,538 8,101
153,572 22,623

Revenue from
external
customers

Specified
non-current
assets
BEFRBDEE
HK$'000

FHT

INRE P 2 Wt
HK$'000
TAET

Hong Kong BB 25,655 53,349
PRC i 99,146 4,473
124,801 57,822
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 9B E @)
(e) Information about major customers (e) EEEZFZ2EH
Revenue from transactions with external customers (EAREBWZE10%HIA FZINRE B
amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue REGTWHKREBEZERS  SWOT
come from trading business. The analysis is as
follows:
Revenue
&
2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Customer A ZFPA 35,916 95,148
Customer B =FB 85,957 -
121,873 95,148
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EERIBEEHFEACZEHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) E=EM=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the B ENEARATIES (BIFERAT
Company's directors, including the Chief Executive THeR) e m T

Officer of the Company, are as follows:

2017 —F—+5
Discretionary
bonus and
performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
and other incentive benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes
Bis
HER TARRE ik
e HitER HERBAR  BAGEMAR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR T
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun Mttt 504 - - _ 504
Mr. Lu Zhigiang BERLE 504 19 - 12 535
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau BEREE - 640 - 18 658
Mr. Jiang Hongaing FHERE 504 - - - 504
Ms. Li Mei EX S 600 - - - 600

Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo wkat 1,000 - - - 1,000

Independent Non-executive B E#{TES

Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming SMHEG L 105 - - _ 105
Mr. Chan Yun Hing RERLE 105 = = - 105
Mr. Gui Qiangfang Yok e 105 = - - 105

3,427 659 = 30 4,116
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EEREBEEFEAZEHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#F)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (i) EE=ME @)
2016 —w_

Discretionary

bonus and
performance  Contributions
Salaries related  toretirement
and other incentive benefits

Fees benefits payments schemes
BETALR

: FRIRR SRR

5 EftaH BB AT eIt
HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TEL B TR TAL

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun HEmEE 504 - - - 504
Mr. LuZhigiang ExBiE 504 5 - 10 519
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERIEE - 640 - 18 658
Mr. Jiang Hongaing AL 504 - - - 504
Ms. Li Mei (Note a) gt (fita) 179 - - - 179
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Note b) ~ T/MB& £ (Hfith) 462 - - - 162

Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo W&t 1,000 - - - 1,000

Independent Non-executive B fHTEE

Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming SRR LA 100 _ _ N 100
Mr. Chan Yun Hing BREEE L 100 - _ _ 100
Mr. Gui Qiangfang LY it 100 - - - 100
Mr.ChiChiHung, Kenneth  EH#%4 (fifsc)

(Note ¢) 3 - - - 35

3,488 645 - 28 4,161

Note a: Appointed on 14 December 2015. M3Fa - R-Z—RH+-ATMORAESEF-
Note b:Resigned on 10 March 2016. Miztb R -—E—XE=A+BEIE -
Note c:Retired on 7 August 2015. e R-ZB—HFNALBEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

()

(ii)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
the loss of office (2016: Nil).

There was no emoluments waived by any directors
during the year (2016: Nil).

The directors consider that they are the only key
management personnel of the Group and details for
their emoluments have been set out above.

Fees, salaries and other benefits paid to or for the
executive and non-executive directors are generally
emoluments paid or receivable in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Five highest paid employees

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included 3 (2016: 2) directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining non-director highest paid individuals
are as follows:

15. EERAEREHFERZHE

(#5)
()

(ii)

EEME @)

RAEER  AEETELHTHE T
0] 8 4 75 00 A S £2 [ 05 o 0 3| 4%
EINAKNESR Y 8 ok Ve AR
(ZT—RF )

RAFEALBEMNESREMNS (=
T—REE) -

EERR BER/AKBEFEEE
BAR AEEEMEZFBER L
SCEG ©

XNATRIFATEST 2T  FE
REMBN —RERZZALTERR
REREMBARZ BB HEM
RBEMMN FZEALTHZFTALRE
Wz -

TEREFHEES

RAFER AiAmeFALEE=
F2(ZFE-—ARF WMB)EF AAK
EME2FHBERN EXET - h T &K
SEFIFEEALZMENT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T T

Salaries and other benefits Fe R EMET 1,243 2,668

contributions to retirement benefits iR i@ FIET 24t 2k

schemes 36 45
Discretionary and performance related 1% & 2% IR 48 B8 428 < 3¢

incentive payments - -
Inducement to join or upon joining N AZREE @A R 5| 1R

the Group MAREE 2 828 = -

Compensation for loss of office BEBR (2 - -

1,279 2,713

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T EE AR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EEREBEEFEAZEHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#)

(ii) Five highest paid employees (continued) (i) EBESHES @)
Emoluments of the non-director highest paid SEHIEFEATZBMEN T 5
individual(s) fell within the following bands: :

Number of individual(s)

A
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 7L & 1,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements

16. V¥  -BERKME

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles

Construction
in progress Total

LD
HK$'000

AT

Bl %8
e
HK$'000

BT

A8
HKS'000
7

EBIR o
HK$'000 HKS'000

BT BT

Cost: R
At T Apri 2015 RZE-RENA-H 21,263 13,149 13,775 3,169 51,356
Additions RE - 77 - - 77
Disposal L& (3,082) (219) - - (3301)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RIBAR (7.963) (1,516) (300) (3,183) (12,962
Exchange adjustments ERREES (212) 83 416) 14 (697)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-REZA=+-Bk
1 April 2016 “E-R"FNA-H 10,006 11,408 13,059 - 34,473
Additions HE - 6,078 - - 6,078
Exchange adjustments E 1% (102) (108) (493) - (703)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-H 9,904 173718 12,566 - 39,848
Accumulated amortisation, ZEH FERAE:
depreciation and
impairment:
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-HFNA-H 9,155 5,082 4318 - 19,155
Charge for the year TEEER 4,251 1870 2741 - 8862
Eliminated on disposals HEBHHE (3,082) 219 - - (3.30)
Disposal of & subsidiary HE-EIEAR (1,242) (362 (66) - (1,670)
Exchange adjustments ]S (187) (63) (145) - (395)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-REZA=+-Bk
at 1 April 2016 RZZ-~ENA-H 8,895 6,908 6,848 - 22,651
Charge for the year TEEER 404 4,103 253 - 7,043
Exchange adjustments ]S (101) 87) (281) - 469)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=ZA=1-H 9,198 10,924 9103 - 29,225
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 March 2017 W-E—tE=RA=1-H 706 6,454 3463 - 10,623
At 31 March 2016 R-E-~E=ZA=+-H 1,11 4,500 6,211 - 11,822

The gross carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment includes an amount of HK$1,558,000 (2016:
HK$1,558,000) in respect of fully depreciated leasehold
improvements that is still in use.

AEEYE  BELARBERAEEREEZE
P& = £ A3 2 FH & % £ 1,558,00078 7T
ZZ=—7]% ¢ 1,558,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Rt EE
Exclusive Exclusive Exclusive
Licence A Licence B Licence C Total
BX BR EER
B FFOC st
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FFAIREA
HK$'000
FHIT FHTT FHTT T

Cost: PR
At 1 April 2015, at 31 March ~ R=-Z—FHFMA—H -
2016, at 1 April 2016 and WZZE—XRFZA=+—8 -
at 31 March 2017 RZE—RFMNA—BK
RZZE—+tF=A=+—H 12,000 32,000 18,000 62,000

Accumulated amortisation 2 R EEE

and impairment losses:

At 1 April 2015 R-E—RFWOA—H - - - -
Impairment loss recognised AR [EERREEE

for the year - 7,000 9,000 16,000

At 31 March 2016 and at W-E—XE-A=+—0F

1 April 2016 R-ZE—XRFMA—H - 7,000 9,000 16,000
Impairment loss recognised RN EREAREEE
for the year - 25,000 9,000 34,000
At 31 March 2017 RZEBE—+F=A=+—H - 32,000 18,000 50,000
Net carrying amount EEFE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 12,000 - - 12,000
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=A=+—H 12,000 25,000 9,000 46,000

The other intangible assets represent 3 exclusive licences
on 3 patents granted by the holders to a subsidiary
acquired in the year 2013.

Amortisation will be recognised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining useful lives of the exclusive licences. The
exclusive licences have not yet been in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Hence, no
amortisation is recognised for the year (2016: Nil).

H B EERFAAR _E—=FRMK
FEHE A RIRE =REN 2 Z (BRI -

B ERF AR R TRERFHNE
BORTER - BRI AREREN A IREEE
BUE T AR 2 B MR o Bt AFE
WERERAHE(—T—RF )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. Rt EFE =)

Details of the useful lives of the exclusive licences are as
follows:

Particulars of exclusive licences

BRIATEFF

BRATAEZ P ERFEHFBOT

Expiry date of
exclusive licence
granted to subsidiary
BTHBARZ
BRITAEZISA

Method for constructing pancreatic stem cell line from human insulin and

differentiating to insulin secretion cell (“Exclusive Licence A")

25 November 2031

—RBREABRENRRHARZNERZRARSZDWARDI(CHITE

(MBHFFRIEAL

—E=—F+—A=+HAH

Injectable temperature sensitive gel used for filling and repairing damaged

tissues (“Exclusive Licence B")

—RARNAMREESBAMN DTSR R (BRFTAI#EB])

Injection gel containing submicron hyaluronic acid microspheres and

preparation method (“Exclusive Licence C”)

— 2B e KSR E B R R 5 R B B 770K (B REFRI#EC)

Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2017

During the year, the management of the Group prepared
their development plans for three exclusive licences,
including the priority of development activities. It was
determined that Exclusive Licence A shall be prioritised
ahead of the others, after taking into account the resources
available to the Group for development activities. The
impairment assessment of Exclusive Licence A was
performed as part of the impairment assessment of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") of pancreatic stem cell service
line to which it belongs as management of the Group have
prepared detailed development plans and begun the
process of preparing detailed production plans for the
pancreatic stem cell service line during the current financial
year. The principal assets of the CGU as at 31 March 2017
comprised the Exclusive Licence A and equipments
purchased for use in the development and future
production processes. The recoverable amount of the CGU
was determined by the directors of the Company based on
value in use calculation with reference to a professional
valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal Limited. That
calculation was determined based on the financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 27.33%. The
recoverable amount of the CGU is based on certain key
assumptions, including 5-year average annual growth rate
of 10% and projected gross profit margin of 72.00%.

10 June 2031

—E=—FXA+H

10 June 2031

—E=—FXA+H
BE-_—+t&=A=+—HL#E

Bz BEFE

RAEE  AEBEEEE ST =HBRA
B2ERTE BREREH BT -
REBAKHEARREREHZERE B
IREBERFTAIEABTNEMFTAIAE - AR
AEBEEEEEN B MY RFERREFAE
& R 8130 BA 4 L FBR AR 0 A4 MR 5 R 755 4 1) = A
HEERE SUBKFFAIRAZBERE 2/
BERHEEREFBRIR AR R RS 2R
TELBEN(ReEELEM])REMMZ—
BOET - RZB—tF=A=+—H R
TELEU TREEBRBRTAEAR
BARBREAREEBERGEZRE - R
TELABUZAIREESETAARRESE
RERBEFAEL2ZZFERFEERA
AT EXREERSET - Lt EHER
RABEZMAERERFHIMBEE

27 BB BRARXRETE - BEELEM A
WRIEHEENE TEERE  BRE10%0F
FIGIE R R K 72.00% FERIFE R = -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. Rt T E =)

Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2017 (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of the CGU exceeds its carrying amount and no impairment
loss is considered necessary.

During the year, Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence
C were assessed for impairment individually as there were
no other assets belonging to the service lines to which they
belong. The recoverable amounts of the Exclusive Licence
B and Exclusive Licence C were determined by the directors
of the Company based on value in use calculation with
reference to a professional valuation report issued by Roma
Appraisal Limited. That calculation was determined based
on the financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount
rate of 33.47%. The Group adopted value in use as the
recoverable amount of the Exclusive Licence B and
Exclusive Licence C as the development plans and
schedules of the Group for the three licences were
prepared during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence C were nil
after taking into account the planned delays in the
development and production schedules related to these
two licences arising from the management’s decision to
prioritise resources and focus on development of
pancreatic stem cell business. Accordingly, full impairment
loss of HK$25,000,000 and HK$9,000,000 was recognised
for Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence C respectively
during the year.

E-E—+tHF=ZHA=+—HLHF
E 2 B E T @)
PSR AR + B S BE A B 2 AT M [E] § RE R
HEBEEE - BERRRERSS -

RAFE  ARAEEEMEEBRNBRA
BN BRFT I RECPTEB RS - B AT Rl #E
BN IBHKFF A # CE ERIETTRIERE - B
Ref A B R BHAAECZ A MBS
HARRERENMEREEAEL2ERES
BRFEBERARMNBEEXAERSE
o ZAtENERARREEAERER
FHIZ BATSTRE R 33.47% B ATALIR K ETE ©
AEBRAEREEESBRFAIEBLE
RefAECz Ak E e RARAEED
RAEESIETZ =2 ERA S L&
AR o

RBER - ZEIEEEHERELRF
ZREBHZMNFT A HRABRRIEE
RRER MR IRRERBARE
1% BUBRET Al HEB MBS T R C 2 AT
EEEAT - Bt - RAFEEDHIBBR
FTAIEB MBRAT A CHEREZERERR
25,000,000 % 7T, 52 9,000,000 /& 7T,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. Rt EFE =)

Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2016

As at 31 March 2016, the directors of the Company
conducted an impairment assessment review on the other
intangible assets for purposes of annual impairment
testing. The recoverable amounts of each exclusive licence
at the end of the reporting period have been determined by
the directors of the Company on the basis of a fair value
less costs of disposal calculation using excess earning
method under income-based approach with reference to a
professional valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal
Limited. The recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions, including projected selling price, sale volume,
and selling and administrative cost. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation used present value of profits
attributable to other intangible assets after deducting the
proportion of profits that are attributable to other
contributory assets and at a post-tax discount rate of
22.78%. The profit forecast was based on the latest
estimation approved by the Group’s management covering
useful lives of the exclusive licences. The Group measured
the fair value less costs of disposal of the other intangible
assets assuming their highest and best use by market
participants.

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of the Exclusive Licence A exceeded its carrying amount
and no impairment loss is considered necessary. The
recoverable amounts of the Exclusive Licence B and the
Exclusive Licence C were lower than their carrying
amounts, and accordingly impairment losses of
approximately HK$7,000,000 and HK$9,000,000 was
recognised for Exclusive Licence B and the Exclusive
Licence C respectively during the year. It was mainly due to
the (i) increase in discount rate and (ii) deferral of
production plan.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation of other
intangible assets was classified as Level 3 measurement
under fair value hierarchy.

BE-E—-—XF=ZA=Z+—HLtH
E Z B E T
RZBE—RF=ZA=1T—H  ARAEEH
FERBEARSEMERYEEETRENE
Bl o BFEFFT AR ImE R ZATWE S
HHRARRZESURA L EINBFEE A
FEREERATE - WREETBRTE
BRARIFATIEEEGERS - Al KE®E
ERETEERRK  BEBEEE  HEMN
RIHE RITHKA « A FEREEXRTE
FREMEREERGEENIRE  WHKRE
fth 53 2 & B FEAS 8 N BP9 W AR B 12 B IR 2K
2278%HE o mFTERAERAREEEER i
HEB TR R 2 I R EAST (A5 o K
SEFEFEMEREE AT ERD SRR
W - TﬂEj*“l‘h%//\%@Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
Zﬁirﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁ pan

RMEHR - BRETAIEAZ T REI & EE
HEIRmE  BAERBAERE - BRI
BBRBHRFTAIREC AW E G ELENE
BREE AR FEE DRI BRIT T #B
MIB R A A] A C HE AR (B 518 497,000,000 75
JC 9,000,000 7T bt T3 £ Z H A () ELIR
& EH R () EERTEIEAIFTE -

Hitp BB E 2 AP EBIE SRR ERE
RNHEBROBRE=MTERBR

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 e B2 & B AR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. AL EHERS

2017 2016
o R ; T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB FHT

Unlisted equity investment incorporated A PEELZF s Ak Sz 2 FE AR AR

in Spain, at cost (Note) WE IR (H5E) 2,509 2,509
Note: The unlisted available-for-sale investment is stated at cost less any W . MRABATEGSHEEA  BER2AALEL R
accumulated impairment because the range of reasonable fair value BETSEET S - NIE LT Al SN E IR B IR AR EM 2
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that HHRESIER o

the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

19. INVENTORIES 19. 8

2017 2016
—F—+5F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR T

Materials and consumables R SR = 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BUER R EMEKRRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables (Note a) FEM R (FiF 5t a) 53,032 38,078
Deposit and prepayments e RIBFIA 4,705 14,630
Loan receivables (Note b) FEUE K (FIEED) 181,197 181,271
Other receivables (Note ¢) Ho i U R IE (BitsEC) 6 13,208
238,940 247,187
Note: B s
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEURBE SR
An analysis of trade receivables by age, presented based on the 1B B AR A W EIER A 25| 2 FEUEE ZREEES TN
invoice date or contractual due date, is as follows: T

HK$'000

BT

0-30 days 0£30Hd 52,989 37,492
31-60 days 31E60H 596 -
Over 60 days 60 H A £ 2,088 586
Total trade receivables W BRT 5 55,673 38,078
Less : Impairment losses* T OREE R * (2,641) -
Total trade receivables, net of impairment losses* 2 30k F{E B 1B 2 FEURBRE i 4a 5+ 53,032 38,078
* Represents the sum of impairment loss of approximately : R&H9577,0008 702 B SRR B AR
HK$577,000 on trade receivables (2016: Nil) and (:g*/‘f\ﬁj ﬁ{&%@2r064'0007’575@%15
approximately HK$2,064,000 on loan interest receivables RMBHRRAEBER(ZF—AF - B)2Z28
(2016: Nil) respectively. A o
# Represents the sum of trade receivables of approximately ! fR&#)36,018,000 72 M H 3 sk (==
HK$36,018,000 (2016: HK$24,317,000) and loan interest TN 24,317,000/ 78 ) K #917,014,0007%
receivables of approximately HK$17,014,000 (2016: T2 W E_?k MEFE(-ZZT—KNEF:
HK$13,761,000) respectively. 13,761,000 7T) Z 4870 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

20. FE U R 3 B 3 fth PR M 3R IR ()

BaE s ()

e BR R ()
AREBEEUERR 2 BREETA T EEEHE

2017
—EB—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAIT
HK dollars BT 17,023 14,347
Renminbi AR 36,009 23,731
53,032 38,078

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging from cash on
delivery to 180 days.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. Included in trade
receivables with a balance amounting to HK$35,955,000 (2016:
HK$23,703,000) was guaranteed by an independent third party and
the balance was fully settled after the end of the reporting period.

The management of the Group monitors the recoverable amount of
the trade debts and considers adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. In determining the recoverability
of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period.

An analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
by age, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBEETEREF 2 EEHNTEEWRRE80R -

FEUER R ET B o BB BR 3K P 488 /5 35,955,000 78
T (ZZ—7X% : 23,703,000 7T ) 2 FEU R AT %
SEZTTHER - BRRERRR2EKED o

AREEREERELEE TRESH  THEE
B BRI ATME S BHRR LB - B
W AR EALERS AR E S8 A E
WY B REREHRI RN ENERETHR
EAED -

BHEERMES| 22 BMERBEZ BB RER D
e

HK$'000
TET

Overdue by: BHA

0-30days 0%30H 13,345 -

31-60days 31E60H - -

Over 60 days 60 HEA £ 9 586
13,354 586

The trade receivables in the carrying amount of HK$13,345,000,
which were past due but not impaired, have been fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period.

AR (B4 13,345,000/8 7T 2 B B RBUE R IR E 5
BRI E SR BB BE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FEUsRE Fx By Bt FE U BRIE ()
(continued)
Note: (continued) st : (&)
(a)  Trade receivables (continued) (a) FE R BR R ()
Movement in the impairment of trade receivables: FEMERFORE &
2017
—E—iF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAIT
Balance at the beginning of the year FEX - -
Impairment losses FEEE 2,641 -
Balance at the end of the year FREH 2,641 -
(b)  Loan receivables (b) B ER
2017
—B—tF
HK$'000
THET
Loan receivables FEME TR 201,197 181,271
Less: Impairment losses B OREESE (20,000) -
Loan receivables, net of impairment losses ERERREREBEFE 181,197 181,271
The loan receivables above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. it E R A TTAHE -
An analysis of loan receivables by age, presented based on the RANIIHE 25| 2 BREFRRSTT

contractual due date, is as follows:

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Neither past due nor impaired R HASOR(E 153,807 181,271
Past due but not impaired B EERRE
— 0to 3 months —0Z318A 27,390 -
— 3 months to 6 months —3EAZ6ER - -
— Over 6 months —iBiR6EA = -
181,197 181,271
Loan receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a B 42 160 A o Rl 1B A PR LK SR8 A B — e I AR HB AR D
number of customers for whom there was no recent history of BEER o
default.
The Group did not provide any allowance on the past due loan AANKIFE34 PR ML - AR ME B ARE B EERKEE
receivables as the loan receivables of HK$27,390,000 has been T EBIRR A IR A & i 2 4 2 27,390,000 7% 7t fE W &
settled after the end of the reporting period, arising from acquisition BN AR S [ A Rt HR R B R A A

of Honorbase International Limited, as detailed in Note 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(b) Loan receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2017 loan receivables bore interest at fixed rates of
10% t0 24% (2016 10% t0 24%) per annum and are repayable within
12 months. Except for a loan receivable with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$27,390,000 (2016: HK$27,390,000) which was
secured by parcels of lands in Hong Kong, all loan receivables were
unsecured. The directors assessed the collectibility of loan
receivables from time to time individually with reference to
borrowers’ past collection history and current creditworthiness.

Movement in the impairment of loan receivables:

20. FE U R 3 B 3 fth PR M 3R IR ()

BaE s ()

(b)  EWERGE

RZZE—tF=ZA=+—R0  BREFREEFH X
WEEUEB(ZF—RF  0EZ24R)FERER
12188 ANIERE - B —IRAZ RN EE T EEIR T
BRIE (B4 4% 27,390,000 7 7T (=& — /< 4F : 27,390,000
BT 2 BRERSN FARKERREER -EF
T2 EERAZBEERCHEIBFEERR - 3
e E TR AT O 1T B B ET A o

FEM B RR B &

2017
—B—+tF N
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAIT
Balance at the beginning of the year FRHERR - -
Impairment losses FEEE 20,000 -
Balance at the end of the year FRER 20,000

The impaired loan receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the possibility of
their recovery was remote. As at 31 March 2017, the impaired loan
receivables of HK$20,000,000 (2016: Nil) was unsecured.

(c) Other receivables
As at 31 March 2016, other receivables included an amount of
RMB11,000,000 (approximately HK$13,201,000), which had been
settled in the year ended 31 March 2017, arising from assignment of
rights for collecting refundable deposit and payment of damages for
the period from 1 February 2014 to 15 March 2016.

ERENERERERAMBRRENE A B2
BHGEETEEMEERE - R-F—tF=A
=+—8 - JAEEYRE20,000,000# T ( ZF =K
F ) WK o

(c) HAt YRR
RIZB-—RFZA=+—H HORKKEBER/H
A B ¥ 11,000,000 7T (49 13,201,000 7T) Z I - A
BREERBE—_Z—tF=A=+—RILFES
B ZRRREHRRATROGTERIAR -
—ME_A-—RE_F-A"E-A+HAHHZEN
BAER] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

21. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

21.

FIERERRA

2017 2016
—E—t+5F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FH7 FET

Equity investment listed in REBLEMZIRAELE -

Hong Kong, at fair value (Note) BAFE (M)

3,220 12,640

Note: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the basis of
quoted market bid price at the end of the reporting period.

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

The Group's cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$553,000 (2016: HK$1,180,000) are deposited with banks
in the Mainland China. The remittance of these funds out of
the Mainland China is subject to exchange control
restrictions imposed by the Mainland China government.

22.

Mt : ETREZAFEDRREARMBTSEAEETE

B& R RITRER
o RRTEHBEFEBFAFRS R
8 A= 18 A SR Z EHRITER -

REE 2 B E NMIRITHERRL 553,000 7T (=
T — /X% 1,180,00078 7T ) 7 A B A 3
ZIRTT - R EFIAE H P BN RN T
B P b IR T BB e 2 /N 8 I BR 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. FEf AR B H fth FE A Bk IR
2017 2016
—E—+tF T
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THETT
Trade payables FETBR IR 41 46
Other payables and accruals EmEMNRIERETER 12,324 13,001
Amounts due to minority shareholders e H} B A 71D &AL R 2 5008
of subsidiary (Note) (FF5E) 30,000 30,000
42,365 43,047
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is HESTER Y IPHEEHARSNSE
cash on delivery to 120 days. 120H -
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice I B AH25 T ENESES ST

date is as follows:

2017 2016
—g—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
0-30days 0%30H - -
31-60 days 312608 — -
Over 60 days 60 HEA 41 46
41 46

Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured, interest- M FERMBAR O ESIRE Y RIE A 48 R EE

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. FIBEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, SEFEIRIF
Deferred tax assets FEERIEEE

Unused tax
losses
REAHIEER

HK$'000
THAT

At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—A 19,914
Net change BE)EE 4,485
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A BBy E 88 (2,813)
Eliminated on deregistration of subsidiaries (=N SR RS 2 (2,014)
Utilised BEEA 47)
At 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016 RZE—A"F=ZA=1+—8K

RZE—R"FHEA—H 19,525
Net change BE)EE 6,679
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=HA=+—H 26,204
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of I A8 A TR A2 R R A AROR M st R B A
the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future HIEEERRELEHIBEE -

profit streams.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EFEMRIA ()
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEERE

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

IR I
HK$'000
T

At 1 April 2015 RZE—AFEA—H 119
Net change BE)FER 201
At 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016 RZEBE—RNFE=A=+—"H8xK

RZZE—RFMA—H 320
Net change BE) R (180)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=H=+—H 140
No deferred tax liability has been recognised due to the WEAEEHNI R RENEERTEXR
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be ZEREEMERECHEARE -

payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, WBIETECEMSERE B2 N\F—A8
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect — B - PR B A R ATREA RS IR
of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January B AGMTEINRL o B AN 5 B ] 12 I 8 0] &Y
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for RFEREoERE - BERE8Ra RERET
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of @R [O - W ESP R B A T TR T
temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by (L 2 B EREPNE A MR R IELIELER
the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the TE S o

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 —E—+F=A=+—HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
(ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each)
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016
and 1 April 2016

25. Bg &

EE
(BREE0.04/8TT 2 EiRAR)
R-ZT—RFWA—H -
“E-RF=ZA=t—HK

Number
of shares
BHEE

‘000
T

Amount
|
HK$'000
TR

—E-RFW™A—H 5,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised share capital A TE AR
(Note a) (fizEa) 5,000,000 200,000
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=+—H 10,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BETRER
(ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each) (ESRLEE0.04% T2 EimAk)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—HK
—hFWMA—H 3,950,333 158,013
Issue of ordinary shares under share RIER IS TS ER
placing (Note b) (Ff7ED) 790,000 31,600
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=+—HEK
—E-RFEOA—H 4,740,333 189,613
Issue of ordinary shares under share RIERHEEETEBER
placing (Note c) (MF5Ec) 948,064 37,923
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—H 5,688,397 227,536
Note: PREE
(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 3 June (@) BERZE—RNENA=ZHBBZARATEBRE
2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased 2 R ADATE R AR 8 1 5% 5,000,000,000 A% 3 i
from HK$200,000,000 (divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares) to f% + £3200,000,0007% 7T.(5 4 5,000,000,000 f% & @ % )
HK$400,000,000 (divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares) by the 1 Z5400,000,0007% 7T (% £10,000,000,0004% & 3B A% ) °
creation of an additional 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares.
(b) On 5 January 2016, 790,000,000 shares of the Company were issued (b) R=ZZT—XF—AFH 790,000,000 4 2 & §& 15

to placees at a total consideration of HK$102,700,000, of which
HK$31,600,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$68,361,000 was credited to share
premium account.

On 6 January 2017, 948,064,000 shares of the Company were issued
to placees at a total consideration of HK$123,248,000, of which
HK$37,923,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$82,185,000 was credited to share
premium account.

A #8 X f8102,700,0007%8 7T & 17 T A& B A - E &
31,600,000 7L E &t AR AR - MRk B S 12 2 A 8
FE68,361,000 B L AIE T AR EER

R-Z—tF— A/XH 948,064,000 4% & A & f& 17
LA 48 1% fE123,248,0007% T % 1T T A& B A E &
37,923,000 T B AT ABRAER - MR X 18 2 itk
58 82,185,000 T AIB st AR R B R ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 26. BEBR{ERTE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval of
the listing of and permission to deal in the shares to be
issued under the share option scheme on 17 November
2010, the Company adopted a share option scheme to
enable the Company to provide incentive to participants
with the opportunity of participating in the growth of the
Company by acquiring shares in the Company and may, in
turn, assist in the attraction and retention of talents who
have made contributions to the success of the Company.

The Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day
within 10 years commencing on the effective date of the
share option scheme to offer the grant of an option to any
eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out in
the share option scheme. An offer shall be deemed
accepted when the Company receives the letter containing
the offer of the grant of an option duly signed by the
grantee together with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
(or such other sum in any currency as the Board may
determine).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the share option scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. On 7 August 2015, the ordinary
resolution was passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the refreshment of the share option
scheme mandate limit under the share option scheme. As
at 31 March 2017, the Company had 395,033,280 share
options available for issue under the share option scheme,
which represents approximately 6.94% of the issued shares
of the Company.

BRER-_Z-ZF\ANBRTZARAR
REFPIARS BB ERRER - UREBR
IR —ZE—FF+— AT LRIEREBR
BB TRETZBRN LT REEZER
T ARABRMBAAEE - EESART
SRS EERERSEBRBARRRRD
MOFARRA ZIBRAR - WA BIRES
RBBHARRR ZKNEHERZ AT ©

E=oAENERAERBIER A BAEF 10
FRAEMZXAZEMNER  AEFSRE
R S E A ERIZEL RIS E
ERAERALTRERLBERE - EARQT
EEARAEAZZEHAREBREED
ZHFERATEREZRRIET(RES
SRREE CEMNEMERSR) N A
BHRAG RSB

RIBBRES B MMEMEMABIRERER
TEZAAARARTTERBRERITER A%
TZBRNEBE LR - EXTSEB TR %
TR 230% c RZTE—HFN\ALR &K
RARBERBAFASBB T RRERMESE
BT 8RB IR B IR EIR AR - 10
“E—tEF=ZA=1—H  ARAAREE
M 4 5t 81 %% 17 395,033,280 17 FE ik 1 - M &
RARBID BT K 6.94% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 26. BERREETE ()

Closing

Number share price

of share Exercise immediately

options price Fair value before the

Date of grant Exercise period granted per share at grant date date of grant

RORRE

REHAMZ R AMAZ

RHAM RHBRESSE BRTKE LYE W
HKS HKS HKS

B

3 January 2014 3 January 2015 t0 2 January 2016 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
—Z-mE-A=H —Z-H%-A=HE
“F-R"E-A=H
The fair value of the share options granted of approximately EROEREZ RAFEL4,723000FTE
HK$4,723,000 was recognised as share option expense REZE-Z—RF-A=1T—HLEFEER
during the year ended 31 March 2016. No share options RERERSY BEZT—tF=HA=1—

were granted, lapsed or exercised during the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: lapsed 90,000,000 share options). As
at 31 March 2017 and 2016, there was no outstanding
share option.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions

BIFEHEBERECKH - KBS TE(Z
T — X4 90,000,000 7 fERRHEEL R © B
TEAFRCE-RF=ZA=t—RA #
AR i R TIE BB AR HE -

R Ea T NEE 2 EREAFERE L
AHA— AR EEBEA MG EFEE
BR DB ARG - ZEAEEH

upon which the share options were granted. The significant ABBOT

inputs into the Model were as follows:
Share Option
B AR
Share price (HK$) as at the date of grant RIFE B Z (B (BT) 0.290
Exercise price (HK$) IEE(ET) 0.400
Expected volatility TEHR IR 63.606%
Risk-free interest rate 42 3 s | =R 0.333%
Life of option e P 1 <F A 1 Year &
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 26. BERRHEETE (@)
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the T8 HE R 08 f Rt FE 5P OR 08 T3 788 R 2R i8 2 2 1R
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may L ERTEAT—TAERER - FIEHE
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other R RN RSB A A A EZEE S o

feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

Number
of share Number
options of share
outstanding Cancelled/ options
atthe Granted Exercise  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
Exercise beginning during during during during atthe end

Date of grant price  ofthe year the year the year theyear  ofthe year
EMHRITE Jetss/ ERMAE
Rt BE 1fEE i A FRIHE ‘ FREN 2B

2016

—EF

Consultants 3 January 2014 04 90,000,000 - - - (90,000,000) -
—E-mEF

B —-A=H

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no RBEPRR AARREBFETE(ZZ

(2016: Nily share options outstanding under the schemes. — NG ) ERITIE 2 BB ARAE o
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

27. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. HE—RMEBAT

On 15 June 2015, the Group agreed to dispose of Tianxi
Hotel to the purchaser for a consideration of RMB5 million.
All the conditions of the disposal have been fulfilled and the
completion of the disposal took place on 19 June 2015.
Upon completion, the Group discontinued its hotel
operations. Details of the disposal were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 15 June 2015. An analysis
of the financial effects arising from the disposal is as
follows:

RZE-—HFANATHER  AEERBURK
B AR ¥ 5,000,000 TR B 75 K& REHE -
HEFEMAKRECER  HEFEN
E-RAFNATHHETK - TRIE - KNEE
RIPHBEZE - EALERRZHBNA
RAIEMR-Z—RFRNATHBRZAMHHE
B HEFHRELZUBRESTAOT

HK$'000

FHET

Net assets disposed of: FIR & EEFE :
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB &R 11,291
Inventories EAS 44
Trade and other receivables P L BR 3 e LAt PR U TR 1,988
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHEH 60
Trade and other payables FE AT BR R ELAth PR A RIR (2,988)
10,395
Release of translation reserve upon HE— B R RRERZ
disposal of a subsidiary R 40
Loss on disposal HEEIRE L EE (4,095)
Total cash consideration wEeNRE 6,340
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEFBEELE RS RAFE
Cash consideration received YRS R(E 6,340
Cash and cash equivalents disposed EHERS KA SEEY (60)
6,280

The subsidiary disposed in the year ended 31 March 2016
was engaged in hotel business and had contributed
revenue of approximately HK$1,429,000 and loss of
approximately HK$5,669,000 to the Group up to the date of
disposal.

REBE-—E—R"F=ZA=+—HLEFEHMH
BZMBARRERBIERY &2 HEBH
IE - BARSEE R UK E #1,429,000% 7T &
JE5 1847 5,669,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

28. COMMITMENT 28. #*&ifE
Operating lease commitment REHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEER  AEBRBE I RELSEHE
commitment payable under non-cancellable operating TR E Y ERE AT ¢

leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

2017
—E—t5F
HK$‘000
FET
Within one year —F R 9,329 7,542
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BEEEMS) 5,634 6,680
14,963 14,222
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum RIRERAR - TR G EHEB T ABAE
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in ENMEERBITE 2R RKERLEWRRTE
respect of leasing of anti-aging service platform as follows: s
2017 2016
—E— & T NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 2,361 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF (BREEEMTF) 37 -
2,398 -
29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 29. RxiEFIGHE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") REBEAMBEAEGEREEZMAIER
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The HE([BEE )58 - LB 2 BETVEAR
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the SECEESFAFEE  WERPRBXFEAE
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group flzHZzERN - AEBEREESETALEHR
and its employees are each required to make monthly e 2 5%31,5008 7L (ZF—7<4F ¢ 1,500
contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,500 BIT) (MBI E RZ%E) Mt EIVEH R - R
(2016: HK$1,500), whichever is the lower, to the scheme. SEpERRESH I CEEEEERER
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF SIBANFRTEHIR -
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued) 29. Rk iBFI5HEI @)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss amounted to HK$278,000 (2016: HK$324,000).

As at 31 March 2017, there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2016: Nil).

AEERFEARKNBEMB AR ZEET)
HEMRMES cBREERAEHNTEZ
KB - WEHBARRRTE 2 HELLHIR
ZIRRBAGFBIHFTIAE RN - REER
BRRNENEZEFEERBMEEMR

e
NI

BHE_ZT—+F=-A=+—ALEE A&
& 17 3R UK 48 A 5T &) 4 B 4 5K A& $£278,000%8
TL(ZZF—7N8F 324,000/ 70 ) @ B R ER
BiEmKRP NG -

R-T—tF=ZA=+—H AKELEA
EHRRFRERMNER 2D RBRER(=ZF
—NEE ) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30.

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investment, held-for-trading investments,
bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

MBEIR
AEBTEVBIABEIHEERE
FHFEERE  RITHER - BURFEEMD
& WO R TR DA e A Rk S B A FE AT 5R0R - B
BAREVBTAZHBREMERE - 8%
SPHTABRZERRNARREZERR
ZHREHNWT - EREERELERZERE
i LA TR BB A5 Ut EREUE & 15 76 -

(@) HBTAEER

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Financial assets MKEE
Available-for-sale investment ARHERE 2,509 2,509
Loan and receivables ER M ERGRIE
— Trade and other receivables — — & U BF 7k K E i fE U 70E 238,323 242,744
— Cash and bank balances —Re MIRTTHER 142,619 40,301
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 3,220 12,640
386,671 298,194
Financial liabilities b S =R
Amortised costs BESHRCA
— Trade and other payables — BRI E A R RIR 39,890 37,410
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. MBI R
(b) Market risk (b) WiZEE
(i)  Foreign currency risk (i) MR BE

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group's functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group's business activities are primarily
exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of
Renminbi (“‘RMB") against Hong Kong Dollar.
The net assets/liabilities of certain investments
of the Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Assets
&E

SMERBRARRAXEIZARE
EREERABEAAKENREES
BAINEEHEREL - K&
SLEDNESHE Z RIS A INE
Rk e AEEEBTEEEEA
RETARBDAETHARZIN
BERE  AEERTEIEIRE
ZEBE/BEFRARIINER
Bk - BEEERBELRRIINER
B - A A & B E BRI
R -

Liabilities
&f

2017 2016 2017 2016
—®—tF “TAF —B—LF —“T-AT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#E  THT TEE TART

Renminbi AR 37,169 38,933 2,272 2,394
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. BB IR
(b) TiEEbE &)

(b) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
loss for the year where the functional
currencies of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the functional
currencies of the Group against the Renminbi,
there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss, and the balances below would be
negative.

(i)

SRR ()

S 2 RS Z 2HT
AEBETZ2EE ARERIESR
ZHE - TRV AEREHAR
AR EREXIAREAER
BZES% 2 BREE - 5% RAEE
B A B N BB RN R bz B By
RSRELL X - RREIREHIE
KA RN 2 A EEBAIEF
e EREIMBERARLTRZ
SNEEHEEIRR - WIRINEE
K75 EHNFHEBAEGRH
BE - NI EHBRHAEEZ
WeEEB A ARBTESS - Al
AEEBRB BN - HAKE
WeEEB A ARBRZESS - Al
HEBRERSFMERZTZE I
THATSKAAR -

Effect on loss for
the year end and
accumulated losses Effect on equity
HEZBFER
HitEEzTE HRER2ZE

2017
—E—tHF
HK$°000
F&T

Renminbi AR 1,745

2016 2017 2016

—T-RE  ZB—tF —TRF

—=

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TAET FET T

1,827 1,745 1,827
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T EE AR A 7

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group’s exposure of bank
balances to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of variable-rate bank balances at the
end of the reporting period was the amount
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year ended
31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$555,000 (2016: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$22,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on its variable rate
bank balances.

30. MBI RmW
(b) miEERE®E)

(ii)

FIEER
AEEBRESRENXAKREER
RITHEBRER - EEERR/AE
BBLIRTTAEBRAR 2R RER
KRR - RESABERT
REHREE -

T =5 fz SRR IR 0 T

AT U E DM TR BN & HA
REEH 2R &R EF =Bk M AR
o A TBRENBERR T
BRITERREFAREBESRE
[k ke

A== 7T B 50 18 B 1 BT

E-_T—tE=-A=+—HI*#E
FEZEBBEBRLY BN
5550008 7L ( =& — N F 1 B
L IN#22,00087T) 0 B
AR ASEART BIRTTHEGBE
SXRETREFERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as held-for-trading investments. The
Group's price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
management monitors the price risk and will
take appropriate actions when necessary.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2017, if the quoted market price of
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as held-for-trading investments had been
increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$161,000 as a result of change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments
(2016: HK$632,000).

(c) Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

30. MBI RmW

(b) HiEEE®E)

(c)

(ii) AR
AEERESBABFEERA
2 BABHRERERA B
% - AEEEERREBETR
BB L mRAES - EREER
AR - LHREEERER
BETH -

BRAABE 1 SR E T

AN SURE DA TR IR A 3R 5 HR
RN 2 BRANE A BB AR & o
W_Z—+E=A=+—08 4
DEAREEEREZEAS LM
WA FE HFTFR TG A0, % 2> 5%
AT i ST - A&
EAFERBEEBRARIEE
BERERNTEZB ML LN
161,000 jt( — T — X F:
632,000/ 7T) °

FERER
AZXZHEFRERTEEMSAEE
XXPBBRRzZESEERRIIKE
A MR R EAAR C R 5
BEZEMEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. BB IR
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EEEM @)

The Group's exposure to credit risk on trade and
other receivables is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather
than industry in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 68% (2016: 62%) and over 98% (2016:
over 89%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers respectively which had no history of
default. The Group has policies in place for the control
and monitoring of such credit risk.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all borrowers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the borrowers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the
borrowers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors have
determination of monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the directors review the
recoverability of each individual receivable at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The
Group does not have any significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
borrowers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group's bank deposits are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC with high credit
rating.

FIEUR R R B At R IE T 5 AR
SEFESCEERBRFEXEEP
Z AR E (TSR P EEMETE)
FEe AREERRAESET 2B
REBZRAEBERERNZTFR T REKX
BEREL -  RIREHR REBEE
REESTERE - REREWIEE
K%?Xuﬂﬁ“2$ﬁl?ﬁgﬁ'&ﬂﬁ
B P 2 FIAD Rl FE W AR K 48 5 68%
(—’7’*/\@5 D 62%) KRB 98% (= F
— R HBiB8Y%) - AKBEERIV(E
B R BE R BUR

RERERRMEMS @ MERAZ
KEBBETERZER  FETEA
EEMZ ZFFREPRERAR
B HA B 38 R 2 B 1 RO 8% S IR IR IE R
N WEEZNBBEERAZARBER -

(V(V

BEREGEERR BEECETE
SET'EE{%%HXEELHEJJW@@,HH
BT - tbsh - EERNHmE MR E
R FE Y SR IE 2 AT U Bl 1 - DARE (R B
R E 5 BRI R SR ERE 1R © LU -
EERRAKEZEERRE AAR
Lo RGBT BEFNEAETEER

C HEBR D B RZERA °

nBEEZEERBRER  RE/RE
SEAMERITERAERREE RSP
FESEEFRZEERT -

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 e B2 & B AR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

30. MBEIT R
(d) "EBELEE

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The tables below analysis the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of each reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

& A BR AR B LA FE A
IR

Trade and other payables

EERPETERE  NEBERY
HRELREFEVEFTREEER
RARKY  UBAAEBZERHTE
SRRERERERDZVE - BR
EEMEHNETIZESHN  BREA
ERAMBERENEMBEE -

TRETAKRERASEREHRES
HMBIE A 12 R e B iR 0 R 2 A 4E

MBI ZHBABON - ERAKE
LEBRAMNAURRERE - TX
BREANERAERERE

On demand
or less than
3 months

Total Total carrying
undiscounted amount at
cash flow 31 March 2017
R-ZE—+tF
=A=t+-—H
ZERE#E
HK$°000
FET

RERR
DPR=@EAH
HK$'000
FHET

RERBEE
HK$'000
TR

39,890 39,890 39,890
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. H¥EIRw=
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBESEE @)

On demand Total Total carrying
or less than undiscounted amount at
3 months cash flow 31 March 2016
RZZE—RF

REK KREVIRIBE =ZA=+—H
= ! MEARRE Z BREBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAET FAT

Trade and other payables  J& < B 3 J2 H 4th fiE +F

FXQE] 37,410 37,410 37,410
(e) Fair value of financial instruments (e) BIBITEZANEHE
The fair values of financial assets and financial R EERMBEE AFEERTY
liabilities are determined as follows: ERETF :
e The fair values of financial assets and financial . HT?#EE%?KMIM#IE%E&H?%
liabilities with standard terms and conditions EECHKEERYBAE L
and traded in active markets are determined FETID RIS EFFRMY %‘i)\ﬁa
with reference to the quoted market bid and RBLEET &
ask prices respectively; and
e The fair values of other financial assets and . HEMHBEERMGEREC AT
financial liabilities are determined in accordance B DIEAREEBEXABRA
with generally accepted pricing models based BEAMMSRHER  EITAER

[ —RVaN

EREDITET °

N

on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERR NUBBEBERZUBEE
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in ERMBaBE s REERE A TEE

s
o

Df

the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value of financial instruments

(continued)
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation technigues that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1

Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong at fair value

REELTZ
BAES

Held-for-trading BEEERE

investments 3,220

30. MBI RmW

(e)

2017
—2-tF

Level 2 Level 3
T, FE=HK F=R

BT E 2 NYE @)

TRERNTRATERRBEFTEZ
MBETEADN  HRAFEBREMRF
BESRF—E2=4:

F—MAFEAENEHERAEEXEA
BRI R OCRAR)ERSH

FE_BATEAENREE-RHAE
FREREDASN - AT E & (BDES) sk &
(REEBRITE) BEEXABESEM
BRABESL &

E=RAFEIERA AL IR
BURETEREL AELEEHA
B (mEBR Y BARE) 2 BER
g -

2016

T —NF
Level 2
FR

Level 3
E=H

Level 1
EF—1

- 12,640 - -

The fair value of held-for-trading investments was
based on quoted bid prices in an active market.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in
both years.

FIEEEREZAFETIAERTS
PR EABRKE -

RREFE  F—RNE_R2EL
EE -
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For the year ended 31 March 20177 &2 —Z—+tE&=A=1+—HIFE

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 31. B EH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate
return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and process during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets. The
Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2017
was 10% (2016: 12%).

AEBEREA BRRARENEBERRZ
FEEBELE 287 UARRERE R &
A EAD I ES AR RE B R R 2 A R AR IR R AR
eI -

AEBERBLBEAN N L ABREE EZ BB
BENFHBEENRE - REFAFBEAR
B AEEEABRINTERRZERES
B MRREREAR  BITHROILEER
EURDER BE_ZT—+FRZT—R
FZAZ=T—RALFE WEHEBEE -
BERNMZFEL & -

rEEREEABL R (RBEABREEE
FE)AEEERENR  NREB KRB AER
BEBBLEENREZKE RZT—+F
A=t RAZEEBBLEEARI0N(=ZF
—7NEF 1 12%) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had transactions with the
following related parties during the year:

(a)

(b)

Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note.

Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of

key management during the year was as follows:

32. ARABEALTES
BRALGGE M BREREMEBOAEKEESI - K
EERAFEREGENTEBEBMALETR
5

(@) AARBEEMBAR (RAKARCZA
AL B EBRRTSERGEEE
BRSSO ER AR -

(b) EEEBAEZHE

RAFER EFREBEIEEEA
BB

2017 2016

—E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Short-term benefits EHIE R 4,086 4,133
Post-employment benefits BERL 1SR F 30 28
4,116 4,161

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EENHMEFZEBABZME VA
FMEZEeERENABZRRALT
LBPREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BRABALES @

(continued)

(c) on 18 March 2016, Gold Arch Group Limited (“Gold
Arch”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a two-year term Technology
Development Agreement (“TDA”) with a connected
person, Hope Bio-Tech (Suzhou) Company Limited
("Hope Bio-Tech”), a company controlled by the
executive director of the Company, Mr. David Lin Kao
Kun and his spouse, for improving and
commercialising the two Patents held by Gold Arch.
The total consideration of the TDA for the first year of
service is HK$9,500,000 while the consideration of the
second year is subject to negotiation between both
parties. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group has paid or payable of HK$6,500,000 (2016:
HK$3,000,000) to Hope Bio-Tech and the total sum of
HK$9,500,000 has been recognised as research and
development cost. Details of the transaction are set
out in the Company'’s announcement dated 18 March
2016.

The related party transaction in respect of (a) above does
not constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (b) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. However those transactions are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (c) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules are provided in the
Directors’ Report.

() A=—ZT—XRE=A+N\B KQFAZ
EEZENBRARRMEEAR AR
(I=f9])) HEE A T EEE AR (8
N)BRAR(TEHEDER] - A
NEITEEMN SR EE R EAEE
#lz AR BEARF 218 B HITE
AREBER(HEMAZEERD - LK
MIBMAEPIRE 2 SFETRA RS
mit o BMAEE R EFRGE 22K
B /49,500,000 7T & =—F 2 E
BEFIHNETENETE REBEZZ
—tF=ZA=+—HLEFER  &&E
EEmE#EMB I HER
6,500,000/ 7T (=ZF —7<4 : 3,000,000
T+ Tk 4288 9,500,000 78 T B
BRAMERR - BEARXZFHBEHRN
AARBHAZZE—X"F=A+/\H
/N i

FREXNE@BZERBALRSTEK
BIXREMRAE0EMRELHERS ©

Wk EXHEO)BZEBBALTRZEMKE
ERETRRNE20BMATEZIBELS - A
M ZEX5EHRBTEIER ETRAE
0B Z2WBERTE °

R EXFECQEZEBHB AL ZENE
ERETRRNE20EMATELIHEERS - 8l
ERETRUNE0EMRE < WEFES
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. FERWB LTS
SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the @ MZEBE—+tF=A=Z+—H &xQ7
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: ZXFEMBATEBWT :
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Registered value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary operation Form of legal entity capital held by the Company Principal activities
HEAREH AfEY/EXHE  ARERFA BT AARAMRERTRARER AL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Bk
Royal Kit Trading Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Orclinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
HREHERLA B company LAR10000ETT RERR
EREMAE
MIMEAENES The Peaple’s Limited ligbilty HK$150,000,000 - 100%  Trading business
BRAA Republic of China company 150,000,0007%7C 855K

hEARANE BREMAA

Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group & company TER L RERR
Limited BREEAA
FRRERIEE
ERAF
LST Operating Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 - 100%  Distribution of
B company LER1ET biomedical and life
BRELAT sciences products
EoR2ER
Gold Arch Group Limited British Virgin slands ~ Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
AMEEERAR RIS company LA En REZR
BEREEAA
159 Regenerative British Virgin slands~~ Limited liability Ordinary US$100 51% - Investment holding
Medicine Group (HX) AERAHE company TERI00ET RERR
Limited BREEAA
10EERERE

(BR)ERAT

159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 - 1%  Storage and
Cell LifeBank (HK,) Limited B company LER1AT processing of stem
FRIVABENS EREMAR cells
MHEERAT SMmERRINT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEME LTS @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@)  (continued) (@) (#&)

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Registered value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary operation Form of legal entity capital held by the Company Principal activities

WEARZR HRRL/EEnY  IRERKA A AAAFBERTRAEEASY TEER
Directly Indirectly
Bk 3

159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 - 5% tem cell anti-aging
(HK,) Limited Bk company TARIBTL -
: application related
S RELD SREEDT Ssrpmes
ERAR -
N #REEERR
HERS
Asia Honest Finance Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 100% - Mongy lending
Limited &k company LaR1AT business
BEHHARAT BEREEAA nEEH
Life Length Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
(HK) Limited (Formerly known & company LERET REER
s Life Length International BREHEAA
Heatth Club Limited)
ERERRENFERD
ERAR(BERRERS
BRELHERLA)
EHEERE (M) The People's Limited liability HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ERAF Republic of China company 50,000,007 BABR
hEARAAE EREAAR
R heEMRA The People's Limited liability RIMB3,000,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and beauty
BRAR Republic of China company AR3,000,0007 service
hEARAAE BREEAA REZREERE
MITEnRERREE The Peaple's Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and beauty
BRAT Republic of China company ARE5000007C senice
hEARLAE EREMAE RRERERIRT
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities EWB R ETMRARFETER
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during AN NER RS IR 2 BT E 5

the year.
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33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of Principal
incorporation/ place of
Name of subsidiary operation husiness

HELAER RS £ LY 3

159 Regenerative Medicine -~ British Virgin slands - Hong Kong
Group (HX,) Limited

INEEREEE(RE) ZERLHE &
BRAT

159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Hong Kong
(HK) Limited

BRIOREERD &k &k
ARAT

159 Autologous Stem Cell - HongKong HongKong
LifeBank (HXK) Limited

BAIVBBENRANE B4 £
BRAT

Indiviclually immeterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
B ERER  ERIFEENERA

33. TEMEBLFHFE @

b) TREINHEBEAFZRES ALK
EIEREMB AR ZFFE

Proportion of
ownership interest held Loss allocated to Accumulated
by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests

FERER EE

iR R FERRLER EE L
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
= S S S S B

HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKSO000
TiEn BT Tin T

49% 4%% (562) (1450~ (14,698) (14,136)
49% 9% (590) (773~ (15573) (14,983)
49% 19% (1,054) (2014 (9,031) (7.977)

(6,198) (5,149)

(45,500) (42,245)
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group

33. TEMEBLFHFE@

BAEB FEREREZAEESMBLARZ
MBEEREIINT - ATHBEEHBERE
2 P $5 Al 2 FROR

eliminations.
2017 ot JY- S
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
E8159
159 B£ B2 E#159 BEEmE
£E(FE) REEFOH A B /BB
BRAF BRATR BRAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Current assets MENEE 1,169 196 10
Non-current assets IEMBNEE - 434 628
Current liabilities mENBE (34,591) (83,874) (19,070)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE - - -
Equity attributable to owners — ZARRA FIHEB A FE{IGERS
of the Company (17,046) (42,454) (9,400)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (16,376) (40,790) (9,032)
Non-controlling interests FEERR
(after intra-group (REANEHEE)
eliminations) (14,698) (15,573) -
Revenue Was - 6,693 -
Expenses X (3,855) (6,896) (2,152)
Loss for the year NEZEE (3,855) (203) (2,152)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHER AEIGEE
of the Company (1,966) (104) (1,098)
Loss attributable to the FEIE R R 2 FE (G ES 1B
non-controlling interests (1,889) (99) (1,054)
Loss for the year REEFIE (3,855) (203) (2,152)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEME LTS @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2017 (continued) —EBE—+tF(#)

159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
EF#159

159 B4 B2 8159 BHEEmM
£E(FB) RREF B E
BRAF BRAF BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T FET

Other comprehensive income  ARQA &) E AFE(L

attributable to owners of Hih2mEkas

the Company - - -
Other comprehensive income  JFEIZEAS #EZ5 FE(L

attributable to the Hih2mEkas

non-controlling interests = - -

Other comprehensive income  ZN4E[E H ith 2 mE Uk 25
for the year = - -

Total comprehensive expense 22 B G AFE(S

attributable to owners of ZHEMZ B

the Company (1,966) (104) (1,098)
Total comprehensive expense  FE{Z=RE#EZS FE(S

attributable to the ZHEMZ B

non-controlling interests (1,889) (99) (1,054)

Total comprehensive expense N4 Z 2 mE [ 7 4458

for the year (3,855) (203) (2,152)
Dividends paid to FFIEE RS 2 IR

non-controlling interests = = =
Net cash outflow from REAKEEB RS

operating activities R (5,327) - (120)
Net cash outflow from REREEB RSN

investing activities R = (19) =
Net cash inflow REREEB RSN

from financing activities HEE 5,337 258 120
Net cash inflow WEMAFEE 10 239 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEME LTS @)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2016

Regenerative
Medicine
Group (H.K.)
Limited

159 FEESE
== (HH)
BIRA A
HK$'000
F&TT

Anti-Aging
Center (H.K.)
Limited

BE159
MEZFRL
AR A7
HK$'000
TAT

159
Autologous
Stem Cell
LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited
B 159
BigEme
4R e
BRATA
HK$'000
FA&TT

Current assets MENEE 2,825 8,826 590
Non-current assets ERBEE - 2,139 2,373
Current liabilities mENBE (31,675) (87,440) (19,244)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE - - -
Equity attributable to owners KA BB A FEIEHELS

of the Company (14,714) (39,002 (8,304)
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T (14,136) (37,473) (7,977)
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T

(after intra-group (REANEHEE)

eliminations) - (14,983) -
Revenue & - 5,287 -
Expenses 53 (2,967) (52,763) (4,110)
Loss for the year NEZEE (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHER AEIGEE

of the Company (1,513) (24,213) (2,096)
Loss attributable to the JERRR i s PR (G B 18

non-controlling interests (1,454) (23,263) (2,014)
Loss for the year REEFIE (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEME LTS @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2016 (continued) —E—XREF(#)

159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K)) Center (HK)  LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
5159

159 FEES 4159 B A me
= (HH) MEEZH D 4P E
BRAH BR AT BRAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&TT T T

Other comprehensive income R A=IEAS AJE(S

attributable to owners of Em 2wz

the Company - - -
Other comprehensive income  JEIERRRESFE(Y

attributable to the Et 2wz

non-controlling interests - - -

Other comprehensive income  ZN4E[E H ith 2 mE Uk 25
for the year

Total comprehensive expense A2 RIEEHB AJENL

attributable to owners of 2HEMZ B

the Company (1,513) (24,213) (2,096)
Total comprehensive expense  FE{Z e =S FE(S

attributable to the 2HEMZ B

non-controlling interests (1,454) (23,263) (2,014)

Total comprehensive expense N4 Z 2 mE 7 4458

for the year (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
Dividends paid to T IEtE s 2 I B

non-controlling interests - - -
Net cash outflow from REAKEEB RS R

operating activities FEE (5,072) (1,080) (2,101)
Net cash outflow from KEREEBSZREN

investing activities FEE - ©) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) REMEGE Z2RER

from financing activities Omi) #58 5,409 (25) 2,107
Net cash inflow (outflow) WERMACRE) F58 337 (1,110) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =ZF—tF=A=1+—HILFE

34. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 34. HEHEER

For the year ended 31 MARCH 2017

On 31 May 2017, Metropolitan Global Trading Limited
(“Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with, among other
parties, Mr. Lam Wai Keung (“Vendor”), Honorbase
International Limited (“Target Company”) and Asia Honest
Finance Limited (“Lender”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor
had agreed to sell and the Purchaser had agreed to
purchase the entire issued share capital of the Target
Company at the consideration of HK$43,900,000. The
transaction was completed on 7 June 2017. Details of the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of Target Company
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 31
May 2017 and 7 June 2017.

BE-_Z—tHF=A=1+—HILLFE
R-ZE—tFRA=1+—8 ARRZEE
2EMBRARAIRKRARKESGERAG(E
FHEEGSE)MEREE(TER]D - W
EREAERAR(TBRAR KAREIZE
BE2ENBRARHFTFUBER AR NE
ADEIvZg# Bl EARBEHEME
FREEEERARZIEEITRA - RE
#43900,00087TC c KHERZE—EF R
AtHZEN  BAKEEEARTEHEET
BAZHBHRARGHBHRAE T —tFH
AZ+—BE-Z—+tF A tBZRMH-
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35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT  35. SEZ A FIMBERIEZEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE R - 5
Interests in subsidiaries INERIEEYNCIP £ 249,308 270,220
Total non-current assets MBI EEMLE 249,308 270,225
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JFE LS BR 3R K i R ORI 13 144
Held-for-trading investments RHIEEERE 3,220 12,640
Tax in advance TEfHIE 642 959
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHER 113,818 38,209
Total current assets mENEEBE 117,693 51,952
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FETHY B A |3 E 705 720
Trade and other payables JE AP BR 0 % L At JE < R IE 1,062 811
Total current liabilities mEN B BB 1,767 1,531
Net current assets mEVEEFAE 115,926 50,421
Net assets BEFE 365,234 320,646
Capital and reserves MR AR
Share capital [N 227,536 189,613
Reserves B 137,698 131,033
Total equity e B EE 365,234 320,646
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors LEFRGR _E—tF AT =ZAHER
on 23 June 2017. FERETIEE -
LU Zhigiang CHUI Kwong Kau
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 35. B ZE AT ERRAZZETH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (#8)
COMPANY (continued)
(@) Movements of the Company’s reserves (@) AARIREBEZEE

Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total

ROEE  BREEE  RHER #4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 AT AR TR

At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFMA—H 524,799 1,575 (392,257) 134,117
Loss for the year AEEER - - (76,168) (76,168)
Total comprehensive expense AFEEZHEAYAE

for the year - - (76,168) (76,168)
Issue of ordinary shares under RERDEESTLRR

share placing 68,361 - - 68,361
Recognition of equity-settled RARRAIAEE

share-based payment MR BERE 2 57 - 4723 - 4723
Share options lapsed BEREL - (6,298) 6,298 -
At 31 March 2016 RZE—7"F=A=1—H 593,160 - (462,127) 131,033
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—-R"F=RA=1T—H

at 1 April 2016 MRZE—RENA—H 593,160 - (462,127) 131,033
Loss for the year AEEER - - (75,520) (75,520)
Total comprehensive expense AEETEBELAE

for the year - - (75,520) (75,520)
Issue of ordinary shares under RERDEEZTLRR

share placing 82,185 - - 82,185
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=1+—H 675,345 - (537,647) 137,698

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 e B2 & B AR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H#Z=ZF—tF=A=1+—HIFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company's shares in 2002.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair
value of the number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
5(s)(i).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 5(f).

Distributability of reserves

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2017 amount to
approximately HK$137,698,000 (2016: HK$131,033,000).

3. ARAELFIMBERARZEH

(#)

(b) HEHEERRRE
(i) Ki7EE

RERSEHSABAEER)
AR )R] PAR AR 4 1B 1 AR 0 TR
HXAE - EARE T AR AME
BERAMIAR ZHE AR
A AN A A R BE 0 R 3 S AN R
Bi& AR NEERRAEEK
BREPEHZES - FAMERD
IR SATIS

(i) #FIERE
AEE 2R RIREEAR RN
R-TZE_FLHAEEREE
AP U R BT /BB X B B E R B R
NER B ETROEERE
A2 Z88

(iii) FBREGEE
BB G 4R 2 R ER 5
RIS 2 AT - R
P B S(5)0) Bt LA M 3877 S R
B BERZ (I RTRAZ &
SHREERR -

(iv) EZf#EE
E W R BRRRERINEBETB
BRELEZMEELZE - &i#
8 To AR 4 MY 5 5N P 8L & R EUR
BRI o

() AP IKEE
ARREERR RZT—+F=A
=t+—B  ARFAAHEIIKFHRRZ
% 8 40 75 137,698,00038 7T (= B — X
4 : 131,033,000/ 7T) °
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LFEHBRE

For the year ended 31 March 20177 BE=—Z—+tF=A=+—RHIFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements of the Group, were set out below:

AEBBERAMBRFEZHGERE  BEREA
& (B e A REEEZM BRI BT

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE
2014 2015
—E-NE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
THET

2013 2016
—F—RF
HK$'000

TAET

—E—=F
HK$'000
T

Revenue W ek 39,153 679,891 320,079 123,372 153,572
Loss before tax FRELRTES 18 (41,801)  (132,825) (77,175) @1,111)  (67,963)
Income tax FTiS®t (11) (12) (1,709) (656) —
Loss for the year from REFELCEER 2

continuing operations REFEIE (41,812)  (132,837) (78,884) @41,767)  (67,963)
Loss for the year from REERIEERZ

discontinued operations REFFE (1,314) (52,121) (9,677) (5,669) =
Loss for the year KEEFIE (43,126)  (184,958) (88,561) (47,436)  (67,963)
Attributable to: FEAG

Owners of the Company PAN/NETEZ R =N (35,614)  (152,201) (81,134) 42,167)  (64,708)

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 2 (7,512) (32,757) (7,427) (5,269) (3,255)

As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2014 2015 2016
—T—F —FT—RHF TN

2017
—B—+%

2013

—E2—=F

HK$'000
THIT

HK$'000
THETT

HK$'000
THIT

HK$'000
THETT

HK$°000
TR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE&®E

Total assets BERE 691219 441,760 316,665 361,642 410,655
Total liabilities BEEE (227,221) (94,904) (52,348) (43,047)  (42,365)
Net assets BEFE 463,998 346,856 264,317 318,595 368,290
Non-controlling interests FEREAR 35,279 (29,549) (36,976) (42,245)  (45,500)

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 e B2 & B AR A R



